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Vision

Company’s Vision & Mission Statement

• To endeavor to be the market leader by enhancing market share,
consistently improving efficiency and the quality of our products.

• To offer quality products at competitive prices to customers.

• To improve performance in all operating areas, so that profitability
increases thereby ensuring growth for the company and increasing
return to the stakeholders.

• To create a conducive working environment leading to enhanced
productivity, job satisfaction and personal development of our
employees.

• To discharge its obligation to society and environment by
contributing to social welfare and adopting environmental friendly
practices and processes.

To be the leader in tyre technology by building the Company’s image
through quality improvement, competitive prices, customers’ satisfaction
and meeting social obligations.

Mission
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Chairman’s Review

It is my privilege and pleasure in presenting to the members of The General Tyre and Rubber Company
of Pakistan Limited, review on the performance of the Company for the financial year ended June 30, 2018.

The production and sales for the period under review, in term of kilos, increased by 18% when compared
with the same period of last year. The net sales in value increased by 22% from Rs. 9.65 billion to Rs. 11.79
billion. During the year, the uplift of tyres by Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs) showed growth of
13% from last year. With the commissioning of the new mixing plant together with other ancillary machinery,
the Company registered substantial growth of 31% in replacement market (RM) as compared to last year.

The gross profit for the year was Rs. 2.09 billion against Rs. 2.06 billion last year. Despite good sales
performance, the gross profit has increased by 1% over last year due to increase in prices of certain raw
materials, significant devaluation of Pak Rupee, additional depreciation and stiff competition. The Company
has increased prices of tyres to partially offset increased costs which was essential due to increasing cost.
The Company is facing competition from the undocumented sector, which is not paying its due share of
duties and taxes. This restricts your Company's ability to fully recover raw material and other inflationary
cost increases. The Company is in expansion phase resulting in additional deprecation, financial cost and
other overheads of expansion. However, this was required to meet the future demand.

As a result of the factors mentioned above, profit after tax for the year ended June 30, 2018 is Rs. 716
million as compared to Rs. 881 million of previous year.

As reported in our last annual report that General Tyre took a major decision to implement Enterprise
Resource Planning (ERP) system SAP for Company's Business Applications and MIS. The system went
live from May 2017. In the start we faced some switch over issues from the old system to the new system,
now SAP is fully functional. In line with global industry norm, full benefits would be reaped over a period
of time.

Future Outlook

Due to boost in economic activity on account of CPEC and installation of new vehicle manufacturing plants,
the company expects that demand of tyres will further increase. With the commissioning of the new mixing
plant together with other ancillary machinery, the Company is better placed to cater OEMs and RM's
additional demands. However, level playing field should be given to the documented sector, who is not only
paying their due share of taxes and duties but also providing employment and contributing towards the
economic growth of the country. The undocumented sector should be brought into the tax net and enforcement
should be further strengthen to curb smuggling.

The board of directors has already given the approval to the Company's management to buy additional land
as the existing site is nearing  saturation point. However, due to substantial increase in the prices of industrial
land, the management is in the process of evaluating various options and would take final action in due
course after taking into account various factors.

The Company concluded a new Royalty Technical Service Agreement (RTSA) with Continental Tire the
Americas, LLC on March 8, 2018, which is effective from January 1, 2018 for a period of seven years.  The
board takes this opportunity to thank our principal technical partner Messrs Continental for their continuous
support and help in taking the Company to its present improved position.

Code of Corporate Governance

The Company keeps close co-ordination with the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and
the Pakistan Stock Exchange and complies with the Code of Good Corporate Governance in letter and
spirit.
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Board Changes

During the year Mr. Mahmood Kamal, a nominee of Pak Kuwait Investment Company Ltd., resigned and
in his place Mr. Mansur Khan was nominated on the board. Mr. Mansur Khan was also the member of the
board previously. The board records its appreciation for the valuable contributions made by the out-going
member of the board and warmly welcomes Mr. Mansur Khan.

The board offers thanks to its bankers and financial institutions for providing support, as solicited.

The board also appreciates the dedicated services rendered by the employees and the management which
is evidenced by the company's record performance and results achieved for the period under review.

The new agreement with workers union's Collective Bargaining Agent (CBA) for two years effective January
2018 was amicably agreed and signed. The relations with CBA remained cordial.

Lastly I would also like to thank all our OEM and replacement market customers for their patronage and
loyalty to the Company's products.

LT.GEN. (RETD) ALI KULI KHAN KHATTAK
Chairman, Board of Directors

Karachi
August 17, 2018
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Directors’ Report to the Shareholders

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report and audited financial statements of the Company
for the year ended June 30, 2018.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Profit for the year after taxation             715,551                881,397 
Other comprehensive loss             (44,172)            (34,533)
Unappropriated Profit brought forward          2,198,673        2,351,809

         2,870,052        3,198,673
Appropriation

Dividend           (896,569) -
Transfer to Reserve for Capital Expenditure      -    (1,000,000)
Unappropriated Profit carried forward          1,973,483        2,198,673

Earnings per share - basic and diluted   Rs.  11.97 Rs. 14.75

The board of directors has recommended 60% cash dividend and 70% bonus shares for the year ended
June 30, 2018.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As required under the Code of Corporate Governance, the Directors are pleased to confirm that:

• The financial statements of the Company, prepared by the management, present fairly its state of
affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and the changes in equity.

• Proper books of account have been maintained by the Company.

• Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements
and the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

• International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of the financial statements.

• The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.

• There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

• There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed
in the Listing Regulations.

• Key operating and financial data for the last 6 years have been included in the annual report.

• Information regarding outstanding taxes and levies is given in the notes to the financial statements.
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• The value of investments made by the staff retirement funds as per their respective audited accounts
are given below:

Value of Investment Year ended:
Provident Fund  Rs. 410.04 Million  June 30, 2017
Gratuity Fund  Rs. 131.13 Million  June 30, 2017

• No trading in the shares of the Company was carried out by the directors, CFO, Company Secretary,
their spouses and minor children.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The General Tyre and Rubber Company of Pakistan has the culture and history of undertaking social and
philanthropic activities.

The Company regularly pays to Wakf-e-Kuli Khan Trust, a trust engaged in spreading of education in the
under privileged class. During the current year the company has provided for Rs. 17.89 million as donation
to Wakf-e-Kuli Khan. Additionally, during the year, the company also paid donations to The Citizen Foundation
and certain other charitable organizations.

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER

During the year the Company contributed Rs.3,214.99 million towards national exchequer by way of custom
duties, income tax, sales tax, and other modes.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the year seven (7) meetings of the board of directors were held.  Attendances by each director are
as follows:

S.No. Name of Director No of Meeting attended

1. Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak 6
2. Lt. Gen. (Retd) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak 7
3. Mr. Adnan Ahmed 7
4. Mr. Atif Anwar 7
5. Mr. Hussain Kuli Khan (CEO) 7
6. Mr. Mansur Khan* 6
7. Mr. Manzoor Ahmed 7
8. Mr. Mahmood Kamal** 1
9. Mr. Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak 4
10. Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak 6
11. Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak 4

            * Appointed as director on September 21, 2017
          ** Resigned on September 11, 2017

Leave of absence was granted to the directors who could not attend some of the board meetings.
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MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Management Committee comprises of 5 senior members who meet and discuss significant business
plans, issues and progress updates from their respective functions. Significant matters to be put forth to
the board and its relevant committees as per the Code of Corporate Governance are also discussed for
onward approval.

CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

The directors of the Company endorse the contents of the chairman's review which covers plans and
decisions for business along with future outlook.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT

We strongly believe in maintaining the highest standards in health, safety and environment (HSE) to ensure
the well-being of the people who works with as well as of the communities where we operate.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

A statement showing the pattern of holding of shares as at June 30, 2018 is attached.

AUDITORS

The present auditors, Messrs A.F. Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-appointment. The Board of Directors endorses recommendation of the Audit
Committee for their re-appointment as the Auditors of the Company for the financial year ending June 30,
2019, at a mutually agreed fee.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the company have occurred between
the end of the financial year of the company and the date of this report.

For and on behalf of the board of directors

Hussain Kuli Khan
Chief Executive

Karachi
August 17, 2018             
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Notice of Fifty-Fifth (55th) Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Fifty-Fifth (55th) Annual General Meeting of The General Tyre & Rubber
Company of Pakistan Limited (the "Company") will be held at the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan, Auditorium, Clifton, Karachi on Thursday, 18 October 2018 at 03:30 p.m., to transact the
following business:

Ordinary Business

1. To confirm the minutes of Annual General Meeting held on Tuesday, 31 October 2017.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June
 2018, together with Directors' and Auditors' Reports thereon.

3. To consider and approve payment of final cash dividend @ 60 % i.e., Rs. 6 per share, as
recommended by the Directors.

4. To appoint auditors for the year ending 30 June 2019 and to fix their remuneration. The retiring
auditors, Messrs. A. F. Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants, being eligible, have offered
themselves for reappointment for the year ending 30 June 2019.

5. Any other business with the permission of the Chair.

Special Business:

6. To increase Authorized Share Capital from Rs. 750,000,000/- divided into 75,000,000 ordinary
shares of Rs. 10/- each to Rs. 1,250,000,000/- divided into 125,000,000 ordinary share of
Rs. 10/= each.

7. To consider and, if thought fit, to approve the following resolution as a Special Resolution,
with or without amendments, to alter/amend (a) the Memorandum of Association (the
"Memorandum"), and (b) the Articles of Association (the "Articles"), of the Company, appearing
black-lined in the attached drafts of the Memorandum and Articles, in order to bring them in

conformity with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (the "Act").

8. To approve issue of bonus shares in the proportion of seven (7) shares for every ten (10)
ordinary shares held i.e., 70%, subject to increase in authorized share capital by shareholders
and other regulatory authorities.

9. Any other business with the permission of the Chair.

1. Alteration/Amendments of the Memorandum

(1) Resolved, subject to confirmation of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan,
that:
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(a) sub-Clause (1) of Clause 3 of the Memorandum be formed as the principal line of business,to
read as follows:

(i)  The principal line of business of objects for which the Company shall be to, directly or indirectly,
produce, manufacture, purchase, import or otherwise acquire, own, process, operate, develop,
use, sell, lease, export, exchange, or otherwise dispose of or turn to account and generally
to deal in, and to render any service in respect of, rubber, both natural and synthetic compounds
thereof, substitutes therefor, substances having properties or uses similar thereto and articles
produced in whole or in part therefrom, including without limitation tyres and tubes and
accessories of all types and kind for automobiles, trucks, buses, tractors, aero planes, motor
cycles and other vehicles, automobile brake and rubber and repair materials, transmission
belting, vee belts, hoses of all sorts and foam rubber products, belts and mechanized goods,
footwear and clothing, cotton, rayon or other fibrous materials and articles of which cotton
rayon, or other fibrous materials are a component part, metals, rims and automotive parts
and accessories, aircraft and parts and accessories therefor and, in general, goods, commodities
and articles of whatsoever nature, and to establish, maintain and operate chemical, physical
and other laboratories and to carry on chemical, physical and industrial research of every
kind and character as may be necessary, useful or convenient in connection with any business
of the Company and to produce, manufacture, construct, import, purchase or otherwise
acquire, to own, process, develop, use, sell, lease, exchange, export or otherwise dispose
of or turn to account and generally to deal in and with articles and substances invented or
developed thereby.

(b) sub-Clauses (2) to (52) of Clause 3 of the Memorandum in respect of the business of the
Company, be deleted.

(c) three (3) new sub-Clauses (ii), (iii) and (iv) in Clause 3 of the Memorandum be added, to read
as follows:

(ii) Except for the businesses mentioned in sub-clause (iii) hereunder, the Company may engage
in all the lawful businesses and shall be authorized to take all necessary steps and actions
in connection therewith and ancillary thereto.

(iii) Notwithstanding anything contained in the foregoing sub-clauses of this clause nothing
contained herein shall be construed as empowering the Company to undertake or indulge,
directly or indirectly in the business of a Banking Company, Non-banking Finance Company
(Mutual Fund, Leasing, Investment Company, Investment Advisor, Real Estate Investment
Trust management company, Housing Finance Company, Venture Capital Company, Discounting
Services, Microfinance or Microcredit business), Insurance Business, Modaraba management
company, Stock Brokerage business, forex, real estate business,  managing agency, business
of providing the services of security guards or any other business restricted under any law
for the time being in force or as may be specified by the Commission.

(iv) It is hereby undertaken that the Company shall not:

(a) engage in any of the business mentioned in sub-clause (iii) above or any unlawful operation;
(b) launch multi-level marketing (MLM), Pyramid and Ponzi Schemes, or other related activities/

businesses or any lottery business;
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(c) engage in any of the permissible business unless the requisite approval, permission, consent
or license is obtained from competent authority as may be required under any law for the
time being in force.

(d) the existing Clause 5 of the Memorandum be replaced to read as follows:

5. The authorized share capital of the Company is Rs. 1,250,000,000 (Rupees one billion two
hundred & fifty million only) divided into 125,000,000 (One hundred twenty-five million) ordinary
shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees ten only) each.

(e) the attached Revised Memorandum (Annexure 1), duly black-lined to highlight the amendments,
be affirmed as the new Memorandum of Association of the Company.

(f) the aforesaid alteration in the Memorandum of the Company shall be subject to any amendment,
modification, addition or deletion as may be deemed appropriate by the authorized person
or as may be suggested, directed and advised by the Commission which suggestion, direction
and advice shall be deemed to have been approved as part of the passed Special Resolution
without the need of the members to pass a fresh Special Resolution.

2. Alteration/Amendments of the Articles

A. Further Resolved that:

(a) the Articles be replaced with the attached Revised Articles (Annexure 2), duly highlighted to
show changes (the "Revised Articles").

(b)  the Revised Articles be affirmed as the new Articles of Association of the Company.

B. To authorize Chief Executive Officer and/ or Company Secretary of the Company to, singly,
do all acts, deeds and things, take any and all necessary steps, to fulfill the legal, corporate
and procedural formalities and file all necessary documents/ returns as deems necessary
in this behalf and the matters ancillary thereto.

A copy of the Memorandum and Articles of Association, with the proposed changes duly
highlighted, is attached.

By Order of the Board

        Siraj A. Lawai
                                                                                                                      Company Secretary
Karachi
Dated:  18 September 2018
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NOTES:

1. Book closure of Final Cash Dividend and to attend AGM:
The share transfer books of the Company shall remain closed from 09 October 2018 to 18
October 2018 (both days inclusive). Transfers received at the Company's share registrar, Share
Registrar Department, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited. CDC House, 99-B,
Block "B", S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi by close of business on 08 October 2018
will be considered in time for eligibility for final dividend and to attend the AGM.

2. Book closure for Bonus Shares:
For the purpose of entitlement of bonus shares, the share transfer books of the Company shall
remain closed from 25 October 2018 to 02 November 2018 (both days inclusive). Transfers
received at the Company's share registrar, Share Registrar Department, Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Limited. CDC House, 99-B, Block "B", S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal,
Karachi by close of business on 24 October 2018 will be considered in time for the entitlement
of Bonus Shares.

3. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to cast his/ her
vote by proxy. Proxies must be deposited at the Company's Registered Office at H-23/2, Landhi
Industrial Trading Estate, Landhi, Karachi no later than 48 hours before the time for holding the
meeting.

4. Members are requested to notify change in their address, if any, immediately.

5. CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down
in Circular No. 1 of 2000 dated 26 January 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchang
Commission of Pakistan.

Statement under Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017

1. The Company's Authorized Share Capital is being increased from Rs. 750,000,000 (Rupees
seven hundred fifty million) to Rs. 1,250,000,000 (Rupees one billion two hundred fifty million).
The following resolutions, with or without modifications, be passed as Special Resolutions:

RESOLVED

a) That the Authorized Share Capital of the Company be increased from Rs. 750,000,000/-
(Rupees seven hundred fifty million) to Rs. 1,250,000,000 (Rupees one billion two hundred
fifty million) by creation of 50,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each. Such new shares
shall rank pari passu with the existing shares.

b) That in clause 5 of the Memorandum of Association the figures and words "750,000,000"
"(Rupees seven hundred fifty million)" and "75,000,000" "(Seventy five million)" be substituted
by the figures and words "1,250,000,000" "(Rupees one billion two hundred fifty million)" and
"125,000,000" "(One hundred & twenty-five million)" respectively."
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c) That Article 3 of the Articles of Association be amended to read as follow���s:

The Capital of the Company is Rs. 1,250,000,000/- (Rupees one billion two hundred fifty
million) divided into 125,000,000 (one hundreded and twenty-five million) shares of the nominal
value of Rs. 10/- each.

2. The Directors have recommended issue of Bonus Shares in the proportion of seven (7) Bonus
Shares for every ten (10) ordinary shares i.e. @ 70% held by the members on 24 October
2018. For this purpose, to approve capitalization of a sum of Rs. 418.399 million out of
unappropriated profit and to pass, with or without modification, the following resolutions as
Special Resolutions:

RESOLVED

a) That a sum of Rs. 418.399 million out of unappropriated profit be capitalized and applied for
the issue of ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each as fully paid Bonus Shares to the members of
the company whose names appear on the register of members as at the close of business
on 24 October 2018 in the proportion of seven (7) Bonus Shares for every ten (10) ordinary
shares held.

b) That the members entitled to fractions of a share shall be given the sale proceeds of their
fractional entitlement for which purpose the fractions shall be consolidated into whole shares
and sold in the stock market.

c) That the Chief Executive or Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby singly
authorized and empowered to give effect to the resolutions and to do or cause to be done
all acts, deeds and things that may be necessary or required for issue, allotment and distribution
of bonus shares.

d) That the bonus shares so allotted shall rank pari passu in all respects with the existing shares
except that they shall not qualify for final cash dividend declared for the year ended 30 June
2018.The Directors are interested in this business only to the extent of their entitlement to
the Bonus Shares as shareholders/institutions represented them.

The Directors are intrested in this business only to the extent of their entitlement to the Bonus
Shares as shareholders/institutions represented them.

NOTES:

A. For Attending the Meeting:

i. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/ or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations,
shall authenticate his/ her identity by showing his/ her original Computerized National Identity
Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.

ii. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/ power of attorney with specimen
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signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time
of the meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies:

i. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/ or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations,
shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

ii. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC
numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

iii. Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
furnished with the proxy form.

iv. The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

v. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney with specimen
signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to
the Company.

6. The shareholders holding physical shares are also required to bring their original CNIC and/
or copy of CNIC of shareholder(s) of whom he/ she/ they hold Proxy(ies) without CNIC such
shareholder(s) shall not be allowed to attend and/ or sign the Register of Shareholders/
Members at the AGM.

7.  Deduction of Income Tax for Filer and Non-filer:

Please note that under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 prescribed withholding
tax on dividend income to be deducted for 'Filer' and 'Non-Filer' shareholders @ 15% and
20% respectively. According to clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR)
withholding tax will be determined separately on 'Filer/Non-Filer' status of Principal shareholder
as well as Joint Holder(s) based on their shareholding proportions, in case of joint accounts.

In this regard, all shareholders who hold shares with joint shareholders, are requested to
provide shareholding proportions of Principal shareholder and Joint Holder(s) in respect of
shares held by them to our Share Registrar. The required information must reach to our
Share Registrar by 15 October 2018, otherwise it will be assumed that the shares are equally
held by Principal shareholder and Joint Holder(s).

 Shareholders are also requested to please check and ensure Filer status from Active Taxpayers
List (ATL) available at FBR website http://www.fbr.gov.pk/ as well as ensure that their CNIC
/ Passport number has been recorded by the Participant / Investor Account Services or by
Share Registrar (in case of physical shareholding). Corporate bodies (non-Individual
shareholders) should ensure that their names and National Tax Numbers (NTN) are available
in ATL at FBR website and recorded by respective Participant / Investor Account Services
or in case of physical shareholding by Company's Share Registrar.
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8. Transmission of Annual Financial Statements through Email/CD/USB/DVD or any
other Media:

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide its S.R.O. 470(i)/2016 dated
31 May 2016 has allowed listed companies to transmit their audited annual accounts to
shareholders through CD/DVD/USB instead of sending hard copy of the same to each
shareholder. However, a shareholder may specifically request for a hard copy of annual
audited accounts. In this regard, a standard request form has been placed on the website
of the company for such shareholders to communicate their request for the hard copy of the
annual audited accounts.

9. Statement of Unclaimed or Unpaid Amounts Under Section 244 of the Companies
Act, 2017:

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, pursuant to section 244 read with
section 510 of the Companies Act 2017 (the "Act"), directs all Companies to submit a statement
to the Commission through eServices portal (https://eservices.secp.gov.pk/eServices/) starting
therein the number or amounts, as the case may be, which remain unclaimed or unpaid for
a period of three years from the date it is due and payable in respect of shares of a company/
dividend and any other instrument or amount which remain unclaimed or unpaid, as may be
specified.

Through this notice, the shareholders are intimated to contact with the Company for any
unclaimed dividend/ shares within a period of seven days after publishing this notice to meet
the compliance of SECP Direction #: 16 of 2017 dated 07 July 2017. List of Shareholders
having unclaimed dividends/ shares are available on the Company's website www.gentipak.com.

The shareholders are requested to contact the Company on its registered address regarding
any unclaimed dividends or undelivered shares (if any).

10.Availability of Audited Financial Statement on Company's Website:

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2018 have been
made available on the Company's website www.gentipak.com, at least 21 days before the
date of Annual General Meeting.

11.Transmission of Annual Financial Statements Through E-Mail:

Pursuant to the directions given by SECP vide SRO 787 (1)/ 2014 dated 8 September 2014,
those shareholders who desire to receive Annual Financial Statements in future through email
instead of receiving the same by Post are advised to give their formal consent along with
their valid email address on a standard request form which is available at the Company's
website i.e. www.gentipak.com and send the said form duly filled in and signed along with
copy of his /her / its CNIC / Passport to the Company's Share Registrar. Please note that
giving email address for receiving of Annual Financial Statements instead of receiving the
same by post is optional, in case you do not wish to avail this facility please ignore this notice.
Annual Financial Statements will be sent at your registered address, as per normal practice.
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12.Deposit of Physical Shares into CDC Account:

The shareholders having physical shareholding may open CDC sub-account with any of the
brokers or Investor Account directly with CDC to place their physical shares into script-less
form. This will facilitate them in many ways including safe custody and sale of shares.

13.Form of Proxy for E-Voting:

The instrument of e-voting shall be deposited in advance in writing at least ten days before
holding of general meeting at the registered office at H-23/2, Landhi Industrial Trading Estate,
Landhi, Karachi of the company or through email at siraj.lawai@gentipak.com.

14.Video Conference Facility for Attending General Meetings:

With reference to the SECP'S Circular No. 10 of 2014 dated 21 May 2014 ("the circular"),
members may avail video conference facility in Lahore and lslamabad, subject to fulfillment
of the requirements and procedures of the Circular, mentioned below:

The members should provide their consent as per the following format and submit to the
registered address of the Company, 10 days before holding of AGM.

Consent Form for Video Conference Facility

"I/ We, _______________________ of ___________________, being a member of The
General Tyre and Rubber Company of Pakistan Limited, holder of ________________ Account
No. _______________ hereby opt for video conference facility at _____________ (geographical
location).
_________________
Signature of Member

lf the Company receives consent from members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding
residing at a geographical location, to participate in the meeting through video conference at
least 10 days prior to date of the meeting, the Company will arrange video conference facility
in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city.

The Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference facility at least 5
days before the date of Annual General Meeting along with complete information necessary
to enable them to access such facility.

15.Mandatory Requirement of Bank Account Details for Electronic Credit of Dividend:

In accordance with Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, any dividend payable in cash shall
only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled
shareholder. Please note that giving bank mandate for dividend payments is mandatory and in
order to comply with this regulatory requirement and to avail the facility of direct credit of dividend
amount in your bank account, you are requested to please provide the information pertaining to
Bank Account on the "Dividend Mandate Form" available on the website of the Company to your
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respective CDC Participant/ CDC Investor Account Services (in case your shareholding is in Book
Entry Form) or to our Share Registrar (in case your shareholding is in Physical Form).

Statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017

The following statement sets out the material facts pertaining to the Special Business to be
transacted at the Annual General Meeting of Company to be held at the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan, Auditorium, Clifton, Karachi on Thursday, 18 October 2018 at
03:30 p.m.:

Alteration of the Memorandum of Association of the Company

An existing company is required to continue with its existing Memorandum and the Object
Clause1 in the Memorandum shall be considered as the principal line of business (Section
27(A)(iii)(a)). The "principal line of business" means "the business in which substantial assets
are held or likely to be held or substantial revenue is earned or likely to be earned by a
company, whichever is higher" (Section 26(1)(ii)).

Under the Companies Act, 2017 (the "Act"), a company may carry on or undertake any lawful
business or activity and do any act or enter into any transaction being incidental and ancillary
thereto which is necessary in attaining its business activities, however, the principal line of
business of the Company shall be mentioned in the Memorandum of Association of the
Company which shall always commensurate with name of the Company. The Company is,
therefore, required to alter/amend its Memorandum of Association in compliance with Section
27 of the Act.

Alteration of the Articles of Association of the Company

In order to bring the Articles of Association in conformity with the provisions of the Act and 
"Table A" provided in the First Schedule to the Act, the Company is altering/amending its 
Articles of Association.

For the information of the Shareholders and their convenience, black-lined drafts of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association, for comparison of the existing provisions of the
Memorandum and Articles of the Company and the proposed amendments therein, are
attached. These are also available for inspection from 10 a.m. to 4 p.m. on working days at
the registered office of the Company.

None of the Directors of the Company have any personal interest in the aforesaid Special
Resolutions except in their capacity as Shareholders or Directors of the Company.



27Annual Report 2018



28 Annual Report 2018



29Annual Report 2018



30 Annual Report 2018



31Annual Report 2018



32 Annual Report 2018



33Annual Report 2018



34 Annual Report 2018



35Annual Report 2018

Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehansive Income Rupees in '000
YEAR  2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Net Sales  11,785,457  9,645,367  9,479,045  9,491,652  8,606,649  8,167,086

Cost Of Sales  9,699,779  7,589,305  7,157,029  7,553,193  7,011,584  6,838,301

Gross Profit  2,085,678  2,056,062  2,322,016  1,938,459  1,595,065  1,328,785

Profit from Operations  1,190,067  1,303,184  1,627,751  1,354,939  1,073,391  867,999

Other Income  74,141  63,675  65,177  65,567  118,304  68,357

Finance Cost  256,782  124,064  136,159  258,301  326,251  289,217

Profit Before Taxation  940,045  1,184,222  1,494,743  1,097,035  748,216  579,975

Taxation  224,494  302,825  462,456  364,180  234,475  184,374

Profit After Taxation  715,551  881,397  1,032,287  732,855  513,741  395,601

EBITDA  1,557,216  1,559,384  1,808,370  1,525,175  1,236,583  1,020,507

Statement of Financial Position Rupees in '000
YEAR 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Cash and Bank Balances  91,120  99,572  116,851  241,769  220,159  187,680

Stocks  3,324,857  2,074,728  1,570,594  1,456,593  1,999,156  1,788,330

Trade Debts  1,027,027  879,333  1,024,670  851,269  1,390,553  1,186,976

Current Assets  6,350,173  4,824,967  3,558,021  3,362,778  4,603,229  4,035,930

Operating Fixed Assets Cost  6,735,011  6,285,069  4,759,440  4,196,775  4,002,644  3,893,997

Investments in an Associated Company  15,363  10,114  6,019  3,321  2,924  1,848

Non Current Assets  4,335,922  3,777,919  3,254,488  1,985,287  1,959,935  1,969,812

Total Assets  10,686,095  8,602,886  6,812,509  5,348,065  6,563,164  6,005,742

Trade and other Payables  1,928,381  1,348,074  1,293,036  1,183,356  838,429  1,282,552

Current Liability 5,214,722  3,139,047  2,424,213  2,145,566  3,981,312  3,553,581

Long term Finances  1,247,285  1,018,583  920,276  383,334  100,000  166,667

Non Current Liability  1,900,177  1,667,453  1,438,774  844,352  550,862  658,651

Total Liabilities  7,114,899  4,806,500  3,862,987  2,989,918  4,532,174  4,212,232

Paid Up Capital  597,713  597,713  597,713  597,713  597,713  597,713

Reserve for Capital Expenditure  1,000,000  1,000,000  -    -    -    -

Unappropriated Profit  1,973,483  2,198,673  2,351,809  1,760,434  1,433,277  1,195,797

Total Equity  3,571,196  3,796,386  2,949,522  2,358,147  2,030,990  1,793,510

Statement of Cash Flow Rupees in '000
YEAR 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Cash Flow from Operating Activities  89,969  (31,532)  1,069,950  2,402,875  (326,815)  182,843

Cash Flow from Investing Activities  (916,934)  (774,138)  (1,437,288)  (187,291)  (132,006)  (341,790)

Cash Flow from Financing Activities  158,827  326,531  287,789  (680,233)  (490,261)  178,948

Financial Performance
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Financial Performance-Profitability

YEAR  2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Gross Profit Margin  %  17.70  21.32  24.50  20.42  18.53  16.27
EBIT Margin  %  10.10  13.51  17.17  14.28  12.47  10.63
EBITDA Margin  %  13.21  16.17  19.08  16.07  14.37  12.50
Pre tax Margin  %  7.98  12.28  15.77  11.56  8.69  7.10
Net Profit Margin  %  6.07  9.14  10.89  7.72  5.97  4.84
Return on equity-before taxation  %  26.32  31.19  50.68  46.52  36.84  32.34
Return on equity-after taxation  %  20.04  23.22  35.00  31.08  25.30  22.06 

Operating Performance/Liquidity

YEAR  2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Total Assets Turnover  Times  1.10  1.12  1.39  1.77  1.31  1.36
Non Current Assets Turnover  Times  2.72  2.55  2.91  4.78  4.39  4.15
Debtors Turnover  Times  12.36  10.13  10.11  8.47  6.68  7.64
Debtors Turnover  Days  31.81  33.28  39.46  32.74  58.97  53.05
Stock Turnover  Times  3.54  4.65  6.04  6.52  4.31  4.57
Stock Turnover  Days  102.97  78.51  60.48  56.01  84.78  79.92
Creditors Turnover  Times  5.92  5.75  5.78  7.47  6.61  5.01
Creditors Turnover  Days  61.65  63.51  63.15  48.85  55.21  72.80
Cash Operating Cycle  Days  73.13  48.28  36.79  39.90  88.55  60.17
Current ratio  1.22  1.54  1.47  1.57  1.16  1.14
Quick / acid test ratio  0.58  0.88  0.82  0.89  0.65  0.63 

Capital Structure Analysis

YEAR  2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Breakup value / share PKR  59.75  63.52  49.35  39.45  33.98  30.01
Earning per share (pre tax) PKR  15.73  19.81  25.01  18.35  12.52  9.70
Earning per share (after tax) PKR  11.97  14.75  17.27  12.26  8.60  6.62 

Debt Analysis

YEAR  2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Total Debt to Assets  % 67% 56% 57% 56% 69% 70%
Total Debt to Equity  % 199% 127% 131% 127% 223% 235%

Distribution

YEAR  2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Dividend  % 60% 150% 0% 70% 65% 45%
Bonus  % 70% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Financial Performance
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Graphical Presentation
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Quarterly Performance Analysis

Graphical Presentation
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Value addition

Net sales including sales tax 13,890,757  11,379,614
Other income including share of profit of an associated company 80,901  61,930
Cost of materials and services (7,995,188)  (6,239,882)

 5,976,470  5,201,662 
Value distribution

To Employees
Salaries, wages, benefits and staff welfare 2,219,046  1,792,151

To Government 
Income tax 224,494  302,825
Sales tax  2,105,300  1,734,247

To Workers' fund
Workers' profit participation fund  50,414  63,599
Workers' welfare fund  18,613  23,949

To Providers of Capital
Dividend to shareholders 896,569  -
Mark up/ interest on borrowed money 256,782  124,064

To Society
Donations

19,121  23,230
Retained for reinvestment & future growth
Depreciation, Amortisation & retained profit 186,131  1,137,597

 5,976,470  5,201,662
Distribution
Employees 37.14% 34.45%
Government 38.98% 39.16%
Workers fund 1.15% 1.68%
Providers of capital 19.30% 2.39%
Society 0.32% 0.45%
Retained for reinvestment & future growth 3.11% 21.87%

100.00% 100.00%

Statement of Value Addition
For the year ended June 30, 2018

2018 2017
----- Rupees in '000 -----
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This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance contained in
Regulation No. 5.19. of the Listing Regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange (the "Code") for the period
from July 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017 and the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Goverenance)  Regulations, 2017 (the "Regulations") for the period from January 1, 2018
to June 30, 2018 for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a listed
company is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are nine (9) as per the following:

a. Male 8
            b.   Female         1

2. The Company encourages the representation of independent, non-executive directors and
directors representing minority interests on its board of directors. At present the board includes:

Category Names

Executive Director (1) Mr. Hussain Kuli Khan

Non-Executive Directors (8) Lt. Gen. (Retd) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak 
Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak
Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak
Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak
Mr. Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak
Mr. Mansur Khan
Mr. Atif Anwar
Mr. Adnan Ahmed
Mr. Manzoor Ahmed (*)

(*) His term as an independent director concluded during the year ended June 30, 2018, and the
company is in the process of addressing this matter.

After completion of the aforementioned process the Audit and HR & remuneration committees
shall be headed by the independent director.

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a Director on the Board of more
than seven listed companies, including this Company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed
holding companies where applicable).

4. All the resident directors of the Company are registered as tax payers and none of them has
defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking company, a Development Finance Institution (DFI)
or a Non-Banking Finance Institution (NBFI) or, being a member of stock exchange, has been
declared as a defaulter by that stock exchange.

5. During the year one (1) casual vacancy occurred on the Board. This vacancy was filled up by
the directors within the prescribed number of days.

6. The Company has prepared a "Code of Conduct" and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

7. The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the
dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

For the year ended June 30, 2018
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8. All powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including
appointment and determination of remuneration and terms & conditions of employment of the
CEO, other executive and non-executive directors, have been taken by the Board/ Shareholders.

9. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose and the Board met at least once in every quarter. Written
notices of the Board meetings, along with agenda and working papers, were circulated at least
seven days before the meetings to all the directors. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately
recorded and circulated. 

10. In accordance with the criteria specified in the Code, three (3) Directors of the Company have
been exempted by SECP from the requirements of directors’ training program as prescribed by
the Code. Four (4) Directors are already Certified Directors. All the Directors are fully conversant
with their duties and responsibilities.

11. The Board has approved the appointment of Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary
and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment.

12. The Directors' Report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the
Code and fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

13. The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by CEO and CFO before approval
of the Board.

14. The Directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other
than that disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

15. The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the
Code and the Regulations.

16. The Board has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises four (4) members and all of them are
non-executive directors. 

17. The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of
interim and final results of the Company and as required by the Code. The terms of reference
of the Committee have been formed, documented and advised to the Committee for compliance.

18. The Board has formed an HR and Remuneration Committee. It comprises five (5) members, of
whom one (1) is Executive Director and four (4) members are non-executive directors.

19. The Board has set-up an effective Internal Audit Function manned by suitably qualified and
experienced personnel who are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

20. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review Programme of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan (the "ICAP") and registered with the Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or
any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company
and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants
(IFAC) Guidelines on Code of Ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

21. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed
that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.
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22. The 'closed period', prior to the announcement of interim/ final results, and business decisions,
which may materially affect the market price of Company's securities, was determined and
intimated to directors, employees and Pakistan Stock Exchange.

23. Material / price sensitive information has been disseminated among all market participants at
once through Pakistan Stock Exchange.

24. The company has complied with the requirements relating to maintenance of register of persons
having access to inside information by designated senior management officer in a timely manner
and maintained proper record including basis for inclusion or exclusion of names of persons
from the said list.

25. We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the Code have also been complied
with.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hussain Kuli Khan                                                                      Adnan Ahmed
   Chief Executive Officer                                                                    Director

Karachi
17 August 2018
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Statement of Financial Position
As at June 30, 2018

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorised capital

75,000,000 (2017: 75,000,000) ordinary shares
   of Rs 10 each 750,000 750,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 4.1 597,713 597,713
Reserve for capital expenditure 4.2 1,000,000 1,000,000
Unappropriated profit 1,973,483 2,198,673

TOTAL EQUITY 3,571,196 3,796,386

LIABILITIES

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term finances 5 1,247,285 1,018,583
Staff benefits 6 373,221 308,417
Deferred taxation 7 270,320 330,982
Long term deposits from dealers 8 9,351 9,471

1,900,177 1,667,453
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current maturity of long term finances 5 471,298 438,717
Short term finances 9 946,187 157,736
Running finances under mark-up arrangements 10 1,742,566 1,082,880
Trade and other payables 11 1,928,381 1,348,074
Unclaimed dividend 14,034 8,147
Unpaid dividend 8,708 8,933

Accrued mark-up 12 58,848 57,460

Provisions 13 44,700 37,100

5,214,722 3,139,047

TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,114,899 4,806,500

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10,686,095 8,602,886

Contingencies and commitments 14

Siraj A. Lawai
Chief Financial Officer

Hussain Kuli Khan
Chief Executive

Adnan Ahmed
Director

Note
2018 2017
----- Rupees in '000 -----

58 Annual Report 2018



Statement of Financial Position
As at June 30, 2018

ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 15 4,247,309 3,669,151
Intangible assets 16 46,584 62,480
Investment in an associated company 17 15,363 10,114
Long term loans and advances 18 6,696 7,325
Long term deposits 19 19,970 28,849

4,335,922 3,777,919

CURRENT ASSETS
Stores and spares 20 596,494 489,293
Stocks 21 3,324,857 2,074,728
Trade debts 22 1,027,027 879,333
Loans and advances 23 254,497 310,247
Deposits and prepayments 24 102,605 66,317
Other receivables 25 279,671 264,397
Taxation - net 673,902 641,080
Cash and bank balances 26 91,120 99,572

6,350,173 4,824,967

TOTAL ASSETS 10,686,095 8,602,886
The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Siraj A. Lawai
Chief Financial Officer

Hussain Kuli Khan
Chief Executive

Adnan Ahmed
Director

Note
2018 2017

----- Rupees in '000 -----
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Sales - net 27 11,785,457 9,645,367
Cost of sales 28 (9,699,779) (7,589,305)

Gross profit 2,085,678 2,056,062

Administrative expenses 29 (322,390) (249,535)
Distribution cost 30 (497,851) (452,016)
Other income 31 74,141 63,675
Other expenses 32 (149,511) (115,002)

Profit from operations 1,190,067 1,303,184

Finance cost 33 (256,782) (124,064)

933,285 1,179,120
Share of profit of an associated company 17 6,760 5,102

Profit before taxation 940,045 1,184,222

Taxation 34 (224,494) (302,825)

Profit for the year 715,551 881,397

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
 profit or loss
Staff retirement gratuity remeasurement (net) 6.1.8 (63,103) (49,333)
Impact of deferred tax 18,931 14,800

Total other comprehensive loss for the year - net of tax (44,172) (34,533)
Total comprehensive income for the year 671,379 846,864

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 35 11.97 14.75

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

-------- Rupees --------

Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Siraj A. Lawai
Chief Financial Officer

Hussain Kuli Khan
Chief Executive

Adnan Ahmed
Director
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Note
2018 2017

----- Rupees in '000 -----
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----- Rupees in '000 -----

Balance as at July 1, 2016 597,713 - 2,351,809 2,949,522

Transfer to reserve for capital expenditure 1,000,000 (1,000,000) -

Total comprehensive income for the year
ended June 30, 2017
Profit for the year - - 881,397 881,397
Other comprehensive loss - - (34,533) (34,533)

- - 846,864 846,864

Balance as at June 30, 2017 597,713 1,000,000 2,198,673 3,796,386

Transaction with owners

Final cash dividend @ 150% for the year - - (896,569) (896,569)
ended June 30, 2017

Total comprehensive income for the year
ended June 30, 2018
Profit for the year - - 715,551 715,551
Other comprehensive loss - - (44,172) (44,172)

- - 671,379 671,379

Balance as at June 30, 2018 597,713 1,000,000 1,973,483 3,571,196

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Total

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Issued,
subscribed
and paid-up

share capital

Capital
reserve for

capital
expenditure

 Unappro-
priated
 profit

Siraj A. Lawai
Chief Financial Officer

Hussain Kuli Khan
Chief Executive

Adnan Ahmed
Director
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 36 733,792 911,131
Staff retirement gratuity paid (65,466) (42,108)
Compensated absences paid (2,991) (4,589)
Long term deposits from dealers - net (120) 541
Finance cost paid (255,394) (99,533)
Taxes paid (329,198) (808,765)
Long term loans and advances - net 629 3,563
Long term deposits 8,443 3,818

Profit on bank deposits received 274 4,410

Net cash generated / (used in) from operating activities 89,969 (31,532)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (926,081) (762,464)
Purchase of intangible assets (8,464) (28,884)
Proceeds from sale of operating fixed assets 16,100 16,203
Dividend received 1,511 1,007

Net cash used in investing activities (916,934) (774,138)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long term finance - repaid (438,717) (149,483)
Long term finance - obtained 700,000 462,450
Short term finances - net 788,451 13,847
Dividend paid (890,907) (283)

Net cash generated from financing activities 158,827 326,531

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (668,138) (479,139)
Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of the year (983,308) (504,169)
Cash and cash equivalents - at end of the year 37 (1,651,446) (983,308)

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Siraj A. Lawai
Chief Financial Officer

Hussain Kuli Khan
Chief Executive

Adnan Ahmed
Director

Note
2018 2017
----- Rupees in '000 -----



Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

1.1

1.2

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of measurement

2.2

2.3 Statement of compliance

-

-

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the functional
currency of the Company.

The General Tyre and Rubber Company of Pakistan Limited (the Company) was
incorporated in Pakistan on March 7, 1963 as a private limited company, under the
Companies Act 1913, repealedand replaced by the Companies Ordinance, 1984 which in
turn got replaced by the Companies Act 2017, and was subsequently converted into a
public limited company. Its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The
registered office is situated at H - 23/2, Landhi Industrial Trading Estate, Landhi, Karachi
with regional offices at Lahore, Multan and Islamabad. The Company is engaged in the
manufacturing and trading of tyres and tubes for automobiles and motorcycles.

Summaryof significant transactions and events affecting the Company's financial
position and performance

All significant transactions and events that have affected the Company's statement of
financial position and performance during the year have beenadequately disclosed in the
notes to these financial statements. For a detailed discussion about these significant
transactions and events please refer to the Directors' report.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except as otherwise stated.
Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards
applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and
Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the
IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been
followed.
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2.4

a)

-

New standards, amendments to approved accounting and reporting standards and
new interpretations
Amendments to published approved accounting and reporting standards which
were effective during the year ended June 30, 2018
The fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 became applicable to the Company for
the first time for the preparation of these financial statements. The Companies Act, 2017
(including its fourth schedule) forms an integral part of the statutory financial reporting
framework applicable to the Company and amongst others, prescribes the nature and
content of disclosures in relation to various elements of the financial statements.
Additional disclosures include but are not limited to, particulars of immovable assets of the
Company (refer note 15.3), management assessment of sufficiency of tax provision in the
financial statements (refer note 34.3), change in threshold for identification of executives
(refer note38), additional disclosure requirements for related parties (refer note 40) etc.

-

b)

There are certain new standards, amendments to the approvedaccounting and reporting
standards and interpretationsthat will be mandatory for the Company's annualaccounting
periods beginning on or after July 1, 2018. However, these amendments and
interpretations will not have any significant impact on the financial reporting of the
Company and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial statements. Further
during the current year the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the SECP)
has adopted IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments', IFRS 15 'Revenue from Customers' and
IFRS 16 'Leases'. IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 are applicable for the Company's financial
reporting period beginning on July 1, 2018 while IFRS 16 is applicable for the reporting
period beginningon July1, 2019. At present, the impacts of application of these IFRSs on
the Company's future financial statements are being assessed. Further, IFRS 17
'Insurance contracts' is yet to be adopted by the SECP.

Standards and amendments to published approved accounting and reporting
standards that are not yet effective

Amendment to IAS 7 'Statement of cash flows’: This amendment requires disclosure to
explain changes in liabilities for which cash flows have been classified as financing
activities in the statement of cash flows. In case other items are included within the
reconciliation, the changes in liabilities arising from financing activities will be identified
separately. A reconciliation of the opening to closing balance is not specifically required
but instead the information can be provided in other ways. In the first year of adoption,
comparative information need not be provided. This amendment has resulted in additional
disclosures (i.e. note 5.5 and 9.3) in these financial statements.

The other amendments to published standards and interpretations that were mandatory
for the Company's financial year ended June 30, 2018 are considered not to be relevant or
to have any significant effect on the Company's financial reporting and therefore not
disclosed in these financial statements.

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
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2.5

2.5.1 Defined benefit plans

2.5.2

2.5.3 Employee compensated absences

2.6 Taxation

Current

The Company also operates a recognised provident fund for its employees. Equal monthly
contributionsat the rate of 10% of basic salary are made to the provident fund both by the
Company and employees.

Staff retirement benefits

The liability in respect of compensated absences of employees is accounted for in period
in which these are earned in terms of basic salary upto the reportingdate. The provision is
recognised on the basis of an actuarial valuation,which was conducted as on June 30,
2018.

The Company operates an approved fundedgratuity scheme for its senior executivestaff
and an unfunded gratuity scheme for employees not covered by the funded gratuity
scheme. The schemes define the amounts of benefit that an employee will receive on
retirement subject to minimum qualifying period of service under the schemes. The
amount of retirement benefits are usually dependenton one or more factors such as age,
years of service and salary.

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit
plans is the present valueof the definedbenefitobligationat the end of the reportingperiod
less the fair value of plan assets (if any). The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually on the basis of actuarial valuation.

The actuarial valuations of both schemes are carried out by an independentexpert, using
the 'Projected Unit Credit Method' with the latest valuationbeing carried out as on June 30,
2018.

Provision for current taxation is the amount computed on taxable income at the current
rates of taxation or alternativecorporate tax computed on accounting income or minimum
tax on turnover, whichever is higher, and taxes paid / payable on final tax basis, after
taking into account tax credit available, if any. The charge for the current tax also includes
adjustments where necessary, relating to prior years which arise from the assessments
made / finalised during the year.

The amounts arising as a result of re-measurements are recognised in the Statement of
other comprehensive income in the periods in which they occur. Past-service cost, if any,
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Defined contribution plan

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018
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Deferred

2.7 Trade and other payables

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

2.8.1 Operating fixed assets and depreciation thereon

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit or loss as and when incurred. Major
renewals and improvements which increase the assets' remaining useful economic life or
the performance beyond the current estimated levels are capitalised and the assets so
replaced, if any, are retired.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit shall be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax
credits can be utilised.

Depreciation is charged to income applying the straight line method whereby the cost of
an asset less residual value is charged-off over its estimated useful life dependingupon
the class of assets. Depreciation is charged at rates stated in note 15.1.

Operating fixed assets other than leasehold land are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any identified impairment loss. Leasehold land is stated at cost. Cost of
certain assets consists of historical cost and the related borrowing cost on loans utilised
for the acquisition of those assets.

Depreciation on additions is charged from the month followingin which an asset is put to
use and on deletions upto the month immediately preceding the deletion.

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,at
each reporting date.

Items of property, plant and equipment individually costing Rs10,000 or less are charged
to profit or loss as and when purchased.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
differences reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date.

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at their amortised cost, which is
approximate fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for goods and services
received, whether or not billed to the Company.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all
temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the
computation of the taxable profit.

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018
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2.8.2 Capital work-in-progress

2.9 Intangible assets

2.10 Investment in associates

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any
operatingfixed assets may be impaired. If such an indication exists, the carrying
of the relatedassets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of
recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable
assets are written down to their recoverableamounts and the resulting impairment loss is
charged to the profit or loss. The recoverableamount is the higher of an asset's fair
less costs of disposal and value in use.

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment loss, if any. All
expenditure connected with specific assets incurred during installation and
period are carried under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to specific assets
as and when assets are available for use.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
losses, if any. Intangibleassets are amortised using the straight line method over
estimated useful lives. Amortisation is charged at the rate stated in note 16.

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of fixed assets are determinedas the
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of assets and are included in the
profit or loss.

When the Company's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
associate, the Company does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Associates are entities over which the Company has significant influence but not
Investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
is increased or decreased to recognise the Company's share of profit or loss of the
investee after the date of acquisition. The Company’s share of post acquisition profit or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, and its share of post
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other
income with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.

Amortisation on additions is charged from the month following in which an asset is put to
use and on deletions upto the month immediately preceding the deletion.

Useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if the
impact of amortisation is significant.

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018
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2.11 Stores and spares

2.12 Stocks

2.13 Trade debts and other receivables

2.14 Financial assets and financial liabilities
All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the
consideration given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are
subsequently remeasured to fair value, amortised cost or cost as the case may be. Any
gain or loss on the recognition and de-recognitionof the financial assets and liabilities is
included in the profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

The Company determines at each reporting date whether there is any objectiveevidence
that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Company
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount in profit or loss.

Stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and estimated net realisable value. The
cost of stores and spares is based on weighted average cost less provision for
obsolescence, if any. Items in transit are valuedat cost as accumulated upto the reporting
date.

Claim tyres are valued at their estimated net realisable value.

Provision for obsolete items, if any, is based on their condition as at the reporting date
depending upon the management’s judgement.

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost in relation to raw
materials and trading goods in hand is calculated on weighted average basis.

Trade debts and other receivables are initially recognised at original invoice amount which
is the fair value of consideration to be received in future and subsequently measured at
cost as reduced by appropriate provision for receivables considered to be doubtful. A
provision is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. Provision is

Raw materials held in custom bondedwarehouses and stock-in-transit are valued at cost
accumulated upto the reporting date.

Net realisable value is determined on the basis of the estimated selling price of the
product in ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and estimated
cost necessary to be incurred for its sale.

The cost of work-in-process and finished goods comprises of direct materials, labourand
appropriate portion of production overheads.

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018
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2.15 Off-setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

2.17 Revenue recognition

- revenue from sale of goods is recorded on dispatch of goods to customers; and

-

2.18 Borrowing costs
Borrowing and other related costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. All other borrowing
costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

interest income is accrued on the time proportion basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and applicable rate of return.

A financial asset and financial liability is off-set and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the
transaction and also there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liabilitysimultaneously. The legally enforceableright must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counter party.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For
the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
and bank balances and running finance under mark-up arrangements.

Revenueis recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is reduced for
allowances such as taxes, duties, sales returns, trade discounts and incentives.Revenue
from different sources is recognised on the following basis:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are
derecognisedwhen the Company loses control of the contractual rights that comprise the
financial asset. Financial liabilities are removed from the statement of financial position
when the obligation is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expired.

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018
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2.19 Foreign currency transactions and translation

2.20 Warranty - tyre replacement allowance

2.21 Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when:
-

-

2.22 Operating leases / Ijarah

Contingent assets are disclosed when there is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.
Contingent assets are not recognised until their realisation become virtually certain.

Provisions are recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a
legal or constructive obligationas a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amount of obligation can be made. However, provisions are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

Operating leases / Ijarah in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor / Muj’ir (lessor) are classified as operating leases /
Ijarah. Payments made during the year are charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease / Ijarah.

there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by on occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company; or

there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Warranty expense is recognised in the year of sale on the basis of estimates of warranty
claims to be received against those sales.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded using the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into
Pakistan Rupee using the exchange rate ruling at the reporting date. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and on
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
reporting date are recognised in the profit or loss.

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
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2.23 Segment reporting

2.24 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(i) Provision for staff retirement benefits [note 2.5]
(ii) Provision for taxation [note 2.6]
(iii)

(iv) Obsolete stores and spares [note 2.11]
(v) Determination of net realisable value [note 2.11 and 2.12]
(vi) Provision for doubtful debts [note 2.13]
(vii) Provision for tyre replacement allowance [note 2.20]

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting and
reporting standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise judgements in the process of applying the Company's
accounting policies.

Estimate of useful lives and residual values of property, plant & equipment and
intangible assets [notes 2.8 and 2.9]

Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting
purposes by the Chief Operating Decision Maker. The Chief Executive Officer has been
identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the basis of its
internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a single reportable
segment.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the
period in which these are approved.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected. Judgements made by management in application of the approved accounting
and reporting standards that have significant effect on the financial statements and
estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in the next year are discussed in
respective policy notes. The areas where various assumptions and estimates are
significant to the Company's financialstatements or where judgements were exercised in
application of accounting policies are as follows:

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
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4. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
4.1 Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

7,133,320 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each
fully paid in cash 71,333 71,333

186,680 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each
issued for consideration
other than cash 1,867 1,867

52,451,250 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each
issued as fully paid bonus shares 524,513 524,513

59,771,250 597,713 597,713

4.1.1 Ordinary shares of the Company held by the
related parties as at June 30

Bibojee Services (Private) Limited 16,608,712 16,608,712

Pakistan Kuwait Investment Company (Private) Limited 17,931,292 17,931,292

34,540,004 34,540,004

4.2 Reserve for capital expenditure

5. LONG TERM FINANCES - Secured Note

Term finance - from banking companies

Conventional
- Samba Bank Limited 5.1 150,000 250,000
- Askari Bank Limited - an associated company 5.2 525,000 700,000
- United Bank Limited 5.3 700,000 -
Shariah compliant - Faysal Bank Limited 5.4 343,583 507,300

1,718,583 1,457,300
Less: current maturity grouped under current liabilities (471,298) (438,717)

1,247,285 1,018,583

59,771,250

52,451,250

7,133,320

186,680

The reserve has been established out of the unappropriated profit for capital expenditure.

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
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    1,457,300
       700,000
     (438,717)
    1,718,583

expenditure

commenced
This

(2017:
pari

Company's

commenced

assets

fourteen

from the date of disbursement (i.e. August 17, 2017). This finance facility carries mark-
way

(excluding land

and
made

tranches
quarterly

finance
annum

pari

Following are the changes in the long term finances:

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5
2018

(Rupees in 000)

This represents a term finance facility of Rs 400 million to finance capital
and balancing, modernisation & replacement. The principal amount drawn is
repayable in sixteen equal quarterly instalments. The repayments after a
grace period of one year from the date of disbursement (i.e. January 14, 2015).
finance facility carries mark-up at the rate of three months KIBOR plus 0.75%
three months KIBOR plus 0.75%) per annum and is secured by way of first
passu charge over stocks, receivables and plant & machinery of the Company to the
extent of Rs 533.333 million.
This represents a term finance facility of Rs 700 million to finance the on-
going budgeted capital expenditurerequirement. The principal amount was drawn in
four tranches and is repayable in eight equal semi-annually instalments
from September 16, 2017. This finance facility carries mark-up at the rate of six
months KIBOR plus 0.5% per annum (2017: six months KIBOR plus 0.5%) and is
secured by way of first pari passu charge over all the present and future fixed
(excluding land and building) and current assets of the Company to the extent of Rs
933.333 million.

This represents a term finance facility of Rs 700 million obtained during the year to
finance capital expenditure.The principal amount drawn down is repayable in
equal quarterly instalments to be commenced after a grace period of eighteen months

up at the rate of three months KIBOR plus 0.50% per annum and is secured by
of joint pari passu charge over stock, receivables and fixed assets
and building) of the Company to the extent of Rs 933.333 million.

This represents a musharaka facility of Rs 650 million for acquisition of boiler
mixing line with down steam equipment. The bank against the said facility had
payments to vendors / suppliers aggregating Rs 507.3 million in eight of
different amounts and each tranche is repayable in sixteen equal
instalments on different dates commenced from February 20, 2017. This
facility carries mark-up at the rate of three months KIBOR plus 0.75% per
(2017: three months KIBOR plus 1.25%) and is secured by way of first joint
passu hypothecation charge of Rs 650 million on overall assets of the Company.

Opening balance
Add: Disbursement
Less: Repayments
Closing balance
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6.1.4 Balance sheet reconciliation

Present value of defined
benefit obligation - note 6.1.5 199,384 176,373 329,560 285,624 528,944 461,997

Fair value of plan assets
   - note 6.1.6 (150,069) (133,425) - - (150,069) (133,425)

Liability at end of the year 49,315 42,948 329,560 285,624 378,875 328,572

Payable within next twelve
months (13,351) (23,491) (38,578) (36,150) (51,929) (59,641)

35,964 19,457 290,982 249,474 326,946 268,931

6.1.5 Movement in the present value
of defined benefit obligation

Balance as at July 1, 176,373 158,416 285,624 246,481 461,997 404,897
Current service cost 10,801 6,916 18,198 14,162 28,999 21,078
Interest cost 13,480 10,970 21,578 18,400 35,058 29,370
Benefits paid (25,024) (41,258) (22,519) (10,599) (47,543) (51,857)
Re-measurement on
   obligation 14,477 33,821 35,956 24,688 50,433 58,509
Transferred to managerial
  cadre 9,277 7,508 (9,277) (7,508) - -

Balance as at June 30, 199,384 176,373 329,560 285,624 528,944 461,997

6. STAFF BENEFITS
Note

Staff retirement gratuity 6.1 326,946 268,931

Employees compensated absences 6.2 46,275 39,486
373,221 308,417

6.1 Staff retirement gratuity
6.1.1

6.1.2

6.1.3

As stated in note 2.5.1, the Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme
for its senior executive staff and an unfunded gratuity scheme for employees not
covered by the funded gratuity scheme.

Plan assets held in trust are governedby local regulations which mainly include Trust
Act, 1882, the Companies Act, 2017, Income Tax Rules, 2002 and Rules under the
Trust deed of the Plan. Responsibility for governance of the plan assets, including
investment decisions and contributions schedules lies with the Board of Trustees.
The Company appoints the trustees and all trustees are employees of the Company.
The latest actuarial valuations of the schemes as at June 30, 2018 were carried out
by an independent expert, using the 'Projected Unit Credit Method'. Details of the
schemes as per the actuarial valuations are as follows:
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6.1.6 Movement in the fair value
of plan assets

Balance as at July 1, 133,425 124,711 - - 133,425 124,711
Interest income 11,391 9,287 - - 11,391 9,287
Contributions 42,947 31,509 - - 42,947 31,509
Benefits paid (25,024) (41,258) - - (25,024) (41,258)
Re-measurement (12,670) 9,176 - - (12,670) 9,176

Balance as at June 30, 150,069 133,425 - - 150,069 133,425

6.1.7 Charge for the year
Current service cost 10,801 6,916 18,198 14,162 28,999 21,078

Net interest cost 2,089 1,683 21,578 18,400 23,667 20,083

12,890 8,599 39,776 32,562 52,666 41,161

6.1.8 Re-measurement recognised in
other comprehensive income

Re-measurement on obligation 14,477 33,821 35,956 24,688 50,433 58,509

Re-measurement of fair value of
plan assets 12,670 (9,176) - - 12,670 (9,176)

27,147 24,645 35,956 24,688 63,103 49,333

6.1.9 Net recognised liability
Net liability at beginning of the year 42,948 33,705 285,624 246,481 328,572 280,186
Charge for the year 12,890 8,599 39,776 32,562 52,666 41,161

Benefits paid during the year - - (22,519) (10,599) (22,519) (10,599)

Contributions made during the year (42,947) (31,509) - - (42,947) (31,509)

Transferred to managerial cadre 9,277 7,508 (9,277) (7,508) - -

Re-measurement recognised in
other comprehensive income 27,147 24,645 35,956 24,688 63,103 49,333

Net liability as at June 30, 49,315 42,948 329,560 285,624 378,875 328,572

Payable within next twelve
months (13,351) (23,491) (38,578) (36,150) (51,929) (59,641)

35,964 19,457 290,982 249,474 326,946 268,931
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Discount rate 8.75 8.00 8.75 8.00

Expected rate of increase in
future salaries 8.75 8.00 8.75 8.00

Demographic assumptions

- Rates of employee turnover Moderate Moderate Moderate Moderate

6.1.12 Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions

Discount rate 1.00%        120,287        183,650

Increase in future salaries 1.00% 185,576        118,057

Withdrawal rates 10.00%        149,716        150,430

SLIC
(2001-05)

SLIC
(2001-05)

SLIC
(2001-05)

Impact on define benefit obligation
Increase in
assumptions

Decrease in
assumptions

--- Rupees in ‘000 ---

SLIC
(2001-05)

- Mortality rates
     (for death in service)

The sensitivity of the defined benefitobligation to changes in principal assumptions is
as follows:

Change in
assumptions

6.1.10 Plant assets comprise of:
Debt instruments - Unquoted 108,938 52,578 - - 108,938 52,578

Equity instruments - Quoted 36,782 37,897 - - 36,782 37,897

Cash at bank 4,349 42,950 - - 4,349 42,950

150,069 133,425 - - 150,069 133,425

6.1.11 Actuarial assumptions used ------------------ % per annum ------------------
2018 2017

Unfunded
2018 2017

Funded
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6.1.13

6.1.14

6.1.15 Description of the risks to the Company:

6.1.16

Mortality risks - The risk that the actual mortality experience is different. The effect
depends on the beneficiaries' service/age distribution and the benefit.
Final salary risks - The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is
different than what was assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary,
the benefit amount changes similarly.

Withdrawal risks - The risk of higher or lower withdrawal experience than assumed.
The final effect could go way dependingon the beneficiaries service/age distribution
and the benefit.

Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted retirement benefit plans:

The sensitivityanalysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikelyto occur, and change in some of the
assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of
defined benefit obligationcalculated with the project unit credit method at the end of
reportingperiod) has been appliedas when calculating the gratuity liabilityrecognised
within the statement of financial position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did
not change compared to the previous period.

Based on actuary's advice, the expected charge for the year ending June 30, 2019
amounts to Rs 13.758 million and Rs 46.097 million for fundedand unfunded gratuity
schemes respectively.

The weightedaverage durationof fundedgratuity and un-funded gratuity is 4.34 years
and 6.99 years respectively.

The defined benefit schemes exposes the Company to the following risks:

At June 30, 2018
Funded 60,496 15,729 58,308 182,979 317,512

Unfunded 37,554 34,638 83,824 577,803 733,819

--------------------- Rupees  in '000 -----------------
-

Less than
a year

Between
1-2 years

Between
2-5 years

Over 5
years Total
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6.2 Employees compensated absences Note

Balance as at June 30, 6.2.1 56,806 49,206
Payable within next twelve months (10,531) (9,720)

46,275 39,486

6.2.1 Movement in the account during the
year is as follows:

Balance as at July 1, 49,206 44,674
Provision for the year 10,591 9,121

59,797 53,795
Encashed during the year (2,991) (4,589)
Balance as at June 30, 56,806 49,206

7. DEFERRED TAXATION - Net
Credit / (debit) balances arising in respect of
temporary differences relating to:

Taxable temporary difference

Accelerated tax depreciation 457,330 511,057
Deductible temporary difference

Provision for doubtful debts (8,721) (8,113)
Provision for doubtful custom duty rebates recoverable (26,205) (26,912)
Provision for staff benefits (101,918) (98,571)
Interest payable on custom duties (8,681) (8,980)
Provisions for tyre replacement allowance,
commission and allowances (39,869) (36,159)
Others (1,616) (1,340)

(187,010) (180,075)
270,320 330,982

8. LONG TERM DEPOSITS FROM DEALERS

These deposits are interest free and are not refundable during the subsistence of
dealership and are utilised for the purpose of business as per the written agreements.
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9. SHORT TERM FINANCES - Secured
Note

Conventional

- Term Finance Loans 9.1 946,187 65,020

- FE - 25 Loans 9.2 - 92,716
946,187 157,736

9.1

9.2

9.3 2018
(Rupees in 000)

         157,736
         788,451
         946,187

10. RUNNING FINANCES UNDER MARK-UP
ARRANGEMENTS - Secured

Conventional 1,742,566 1,082,880

10.1

10.2

10.3

Following are the changes in short term finances:

The year end balance includes Rs 59.908 million (2017: Rs 80.355 million) payable to
Askari Bank Limited - an associated company.

FE-25 loan facilities aggregate Rs Nil (2017: Rs 2,270 million ranging from 2.00% to
2.50% per annum), available from various banks as sub-limits of funded and unfunded
facilities.

The Company has arranged running finance facilities from various banks on mark-up
basis to the extentof Rs 4,025 million (2017: Rs 4,225 million). The rates of mark-up on
these arrangements, during the year, ranged from 6.39% to 7.92% (2017: 6.37% to
8.01%) per annum. These finance facilities are secured against pari passu charge over
fixed assets, stocks and trade debts of the Company and are expiringon various dates
by December 31, 2018.
The maximum availableaggregatelimit for utilisation of facilities for short term finances
and running finances is Rs 5,025 million (2017: Rs 5,225 million).
The facilities for opening letters of credit and guarantees as at June 30, 2018
aggregated Rs 3,700 million (2017: Rs 3,500 million) of which the amount remained
unutilised at the year-end was Rs 1,824 million (2017: Rs 1,964 million).

Opening balance

Closing balance
Add: Disbursements net of repayments

Short term finance facilities available from commercial banks aggregate Rs 1,000
million (2017: Rs 1,000 million) and are secured against pari passu charge over fixed
assets, stocks and trade debts of the Company. The rates of mark-up of these
facilities, during the year, ranged from 6.15% to 7.12% (2017: 6.18% to 7.50%) per
annum. These facilities are expiring on various dates upto March 9, 2019.
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11.1 Include creditors of Rs Nil (2017: Rs 8.513 million) pertaining to related parties.

11.2

11.3

11.4

Ghandhara Nissan Limited 266 221

- 15

Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited - 336

Ghandhara DF (Private) Limited 392 -

658 572

Include bills payable of Rs Nil (2017: Rs 2.235 million) pertaining to related parties.

Ghandhara Industries Limited

Include Rs 183.766(2017: Rs 128.477 million) and Rs 23.567 million (2017: Rs 22.753
million) pertaining to Gas Infrastucture Development Cess and key management
personal respectively.

These represent advances from customers against sale of tyres and tubes and carry
no mark-up. These include following advances from related parties:

11. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Note

Trade creditors 11.1 187,693 109,859
Bills payable 11.2 678,359 203,700
Accrued expenses 11.3 672,037 553,102
Royalty technical service fee payable 182,913 42,946
Advances from customers 11.4 54,181 146,066
Staff provident fund payable 4,592 766
Staff retirement gratuity 6.1.4 51,929 59,641
Short term deposits 1,114 968
Workers’ profits participation fund 11.5 414 63,599
Workers’ welfare fund 18,832 24,168
Payable to Waqf-e-Kuli Khan 17,889 56,196
Retention money - 550
Interest payable on custom duties 11.6 & 11.7 29,933 29,933
Stamp duty payable 500 22,140
Others 11.8 27,995 34,440

1,928,381 1,348,074
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11.6 The Company had deferred the recognition of import levies relating to the plant and
machinery imported under a finance lease arrangement with Islamic Development Bank
(IDB), Jeddah as these were not payable by the Company until the ownership of the
subject plant and machinery was transferred in the Company’s name. The Federal
Board of Revenue (FBR) had imposed a condition that interest at the prevailingbank
rate shall be payable on the import levies deferred till the date such levies are paid.

However, during the year ended June 30, 2006, the Company also filed an application
for alternate dispute resolution with the Supreme Court of Pakistan.

The Alternate Dispute Resolution Committee (ADRC), during year ended June 30,
2007, recommended that the Company shall be liable to interest on late payment of
principal amounting to Rs 111.547 million and surcharge on late payment of principal
amounting to Rs 2.983 million, however, the Company shall not be liable to surcharge
on late payment of interest. The FBR accepted the recommendations of the ADRC
except for the waiver of surcharge on the late payment of interest.

During the year ended June 30, 2001 the Appraisement Collectorate, Custom House,
Karachi (ACCH) issued a final notice to the Company to deposit all outstanding dues
amounting to Rs 208.323 million being interest on custom duties including surcharge
and delayed surcharge calculated upto March 31, 2001. In reply the Company had filed
an application with the High Court of Sindh to vacate the said charge of interest.

The High Court of Sindh, during year ended June 30, 2005, dismissed the petition filed by
the Company. ACCH issued another final notice to the Company to deposit all
outstanding dues amounting to Rs 294.907 million being interest on custom duties
includingsurcharge and delayedsurcharge calculated upto May15, 2005. The Company
filed an appeal with the Supreme Court of Pakistan against the decision of the High
Court of Sindh.

11.5 Workers’ profits participation fund

Balance as at July 1, 63,599 80,276

Interest on funds utilised in the
Company’s business 33 3,280 60

Allocation for the year 32 50,414 63,599

53,694 63,659

Payments made during the year (116,879) (80,336)

Balance as at June 30, 414 63,599
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11.7

11.8

12. ACCRUED MARK-UP
Note

Mark-up accrued on:
- long term finances 18,417 43,952
- short term finances 11,892 1,403
- running finances 12.1 28,539 12,105

58,848 57,460

12.1

13. PROVISIONS
Note

Tyre replacement allowance 13.1 44,700 37,100

Other liabilities include vehicle deposits under the Company's vehicle policy aggregating
Rs 16.044 million (2017: Rs 10.632 million).

Includes mark-up amounting to Rs 12.581 million (2017: Rs 13.295 million) due to
Askari Bank Limited - an associated company.

Further, during the year ended June 30, 2008, the FBR accepted all the
recommendations made by the ADRC and instructed the Company to pay Rs 114.530
million on account of interest on custom duties including surcharge thereon. The
Company's pending refund claims upto that time amounting to Rs 20.195 million had
also been processed and adjusted by the ACCH. During that year, the Company also
made a partial payment amounting to Rs 40 million in respect of the FBR's demand
based on ADRC recommendations. During the year ended June 30, 2009, the
Company made a further partial payment amounting to Rs 20 million in respect of the
FBR’s demand.

The FBR, during the year ended June 30, 2011, adjusted an amount of Rs 4.402 million
against outstanding interest and customs duties which resulted in the reduction of
liability towards the FBR from Rs 34.335 million to Rs 29.933 million.

During the year ended June 30, 2001 an amount of Rs 5 million was paid by the
Company under protest on account of interest on import levies. Further, refunds of
custom duty rebates amounting to Rs 4.923 million and Rs 4.070 million were adjusted
by the customs authorities during the year ended June 30, 2000 and 2001 respectively
against their demand of interest on import levies referred to in note 11.6 above. The
management is of the view that the above adjustments aggregating Rs 13.993 million
will be made against the amount of interest payable on custom duties, as more fully
explained in note 11.6 above. However, pending a formal adjustment order, the amount
of Rs 13.993 million is shown receivable as 'Current account balances with statutory
authorities ' (note 24).

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

82 Annual Report 2018

2018 2017
----- Rupees in '000 -----

2018 2017
----- Rupees in '000 -----



13.1 Provision for tyre replacement allowance

Balance as at July 1 37,100 30,600

Charge for the year 13.1.1 & 28.1 62,402 49,356

99,502 79,956

Claims paid / adjusted (54,802) (42,856)

Balance as at June 30 44,700 37,100

13.1.1

14. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

14.1 Contingencies

14.1.1

The Company also filed an application No. B&CA/2.020/01/97 dated November 25,
1997 with the Collector of Sales Tax (East), Karachi for grant of exemption from sales
tax in terms of section 65 of the Sales Tax Act, 1990. However, the FBR on finalisation
of the report by the Collector of Sales Tax and Central Excise (East), rejected the
Company's application through letter No. C No. 1/52-STT/97 dated July 19, 2000. The
Company filed a constitutionalpetition No.1939/2000against the decision of the FBR in
the High Court of Sindh under article 199 of the Constitution of Pakistan, 1973 which
was dismissed.

This represents provision on account of tyre replacement claims expected to be
received by the Company in the coming years.

The Central Excise and Taxation Department had issued a demand notice for payment
of sales tax of Rs 16.775 million. This represents sales tax levied on agricultural tyres
supplied to approved assembly plants which were otherwise exempt under
SRO.553(I)/94dated June 9, 1994 as amended vide SRO.555(I)/94 dated June 9, 1994
during the period from July 1994 to September 1995. The Company filed an appeal with
the Collector, Central Excise and Land Customs (Appeals) on November 25, 1997
which was rejected. The Company filed an appeal against that order before the
Customs, Central Excise and Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal which had stayed the
recovery of sales tax from the Company, subject to the condition that the Company
furnishes an indemnity bond to the satisfaction of the Collector of Sales Tax.
Accordingly, the Company furnished the indemnity bond dated March 18, 1998 of Rs
16.775 million.

The Collector of Sales Tax and Central Excise (East), Karachi had adjusted refund
claims filed by the Company aggregatingRs 12.823 million against the aforementioned
demand notice upto the year ended June 30, 2002. The Company, during the year ended
June 30, 2004, deposited the remaining balance of Rs 3.952 million as 'payment under
protest'.
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14.1.2

14.1.3

Certain claims have been filed against the Company in respect of employees’ matters
for an aggregate amount which approximate to Rs 6.804 million (2017: Rs 6.180
million). These cases are pending in various labourcourts, appellate tribunals and High
Court of Sindh. The management is confident that the outcome of these cases will be in
the Company’s favour.

However, during the year ended June 30, 2006, the Customs, Excise and Sales Tax
Appellate Tribunal allowed the Company's appeal and set aside the order of the Collector
of Customs, Sales Tax and Central Excise (Appeals). The Collector of Customs, Sales
Tax and Central Excise (Appeals), during year ended June 30, 2007, filed a request for
rectification of error before the Custom, Excise and Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal.

During the year ended June 30, 2016, all verification proceedings were completed;
however, Commissioner Inland Revenue rejected the Company's application for refund
being time barred as application was filed after one year from the date of Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue order. The Company has applied to the FBR for condonation of
time limit under section 74 and is hopeful that refund of Rs 16.775 million would be
realised which is included in sales tax under protest (note 25).

AdditionalCommissioner InlandRevenue (ACIR) through its order dated June 29, 2013
has made various additions and adjustment to the Company's taxable income for the
tax year 2012. These adjustments / additions are (i) restriction of adjustment of
minimum tax against normal income Rs 65.130 million; (ii) allocation of worker's profit
participation fund between presumptive tax regime and normal tax regime Rs 0.240
million; (iii) expenses added back on account of cash payments Rs 1.087 million; (iv)
added back exchange loss on commercial imports and royaltyRs 0.286 million and Rs
3.8 million; and (v) reversal of some portion of royaltypayment and bad debts written-off
Rs 110.47 million . The Company filed appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue
(Appeals) [CIR(A)]against the abovementioned order.CIR(A) in the order confirmed the
abovementionedadditionsmade by ACIR except for reversal of some portion of royalty
as mentioned in point (v) above. As a result of aforementioned adjustment /
disallowances a demand of Rs 41.468 million has been issued and has been adjusted
against the refunds of the Company.

The Company has filed appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR)
against the order of CIR(A); which is pendingfor hearing.Provision has not been made
in these financial statements against aforementioned demand as the management of
the Company, based on the advice of its legal counsel handlingthe subject cases, is of
the opinion that matters shall be decided in the Company’s favour..
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14.1.4

14.1.5

14.1.6

Further, the Company has deposited Rs 59.375 million against abovementioned
demands and has recognised this in other receivables (note 25) as 'Income tax paid
under protest'. The management expects a favourableoutcome of the abovementioned
legal proceedings.

Tax authoritiespassed an order under sections 161 / 205 of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 in respect of monitoring of withholdingof taxes for the tax year 2015 and issued
demand of Rs 29.675 million (including default surcharge and penalty) on the premise
that requisite tax was not withheld by the Company at the time of making payments
against incentive to dealers and advertising and publicity.

The Company filed appeals before the CIR(A) against the impugned order. Hearing of
the appeal has been conducted however decision of appeal is pending. Further, the
Company has deposited Rs 20.663 million against abovementioneddemand and has
recognised this in other receivables (note 25) as ‘Income tax paid under protest’.The
management expects a favourable outcome of the abovementioned legal proceedings.

Tax authorities passed orders under sections 161 / 205 of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 in respect of monitoring of withholdingof taxes for tax years 2010, 2012, 2013 &
2014 and issued demands of Rs 11.889 million, Rs 3.212 million, Rs 16.164 million and
Rs 20.060 million respectivelyon the premise that requisite tax was not withheld by the
Company at the time of making payments against various expenses. These demands
include Rs 1.551 million, Rs 0.985 million, Rs 5.256 million and Rs 3.401 million default
surcharge under section 205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The Company filed appeals with the CIR(A) against the impugned orders. CIR(A)
confirmed the orders passed by the tax authority, however, reduced the demand of tax
year 2012 by Rs 0.203 million. The Company filed appeals before the ATIR against the
orders of CIR(A) which were decided against the Company. The Company is in
process of filing references to the High Court against the order of ATIR.

ACIR, during the year ended June 30, 2014, passed various orders under section
122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax years 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011.
The additions have been made to taxable income on account of royalty & technical
services and respective federal excise duties on royalty & technical services claimed by
the Company amounting to Rs 42.293 million. The Company filed appeals before
CIR(A) and these appeals have been decided in favour of the Company. However, the
FBR has filed appeals before the ATIR against the above orders of CIR(A); which are
pending for hearing. The management of the Company, based on its discussion with
tax and legal consultants, is confident that its submissions shall be accepted and no
demand will be raised against the Company.
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14.1.7

14.1.8

14.1.9

Further, the Company has deposited Rs 41.323 million against abovementioned
demand and has recognised this in other receivables as 'Income tax paid under
protest'. The management expects a favourable outcome of the abovementioned legal
proceedings.

Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, imposes a tax @ 10% on reserves of a
company that exceeds amount of its share capital in case company derives profit but
doesn't distribute cash dividend. The Company has filed suit for declaration and
permanent injunction before the High Court of Sindh challenging the vires of the above
said section. The High Court of Sindh passed an interim order restraining the defendant
from taking any coercive action against the Company. The case is pending  adjudication.

Based on legal advisor's opinion, management expects a favourable outcome of the
abovementioned case; therefore no provision for tax on undistributed reserves has
been made in these financial statements.

The Company in response to the requirements of S.R.O. 655(I)/2007 has paid the
special exercise duty amounting to Rs 12.203 million during the period from July 2007
to October 2010 however, the Company had inadvertently failed to adjust this duty
against the input tax. The Company has filed various applications to the FBR for
adjustment of the abovementioned payment (note 25).

The Company has filed appeal before the CIR(A) against the abovementioned order
which is pending for hearing.Further, the Company has obtained a stay order from High
Court of Sindh (note 14.1.7) regarding the imposition of tax on undistributed reserves.

Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) through its order dated June 14, 2017
has made various additions and adjustment to the Company's taxable income for the
tax year 2016 and issued a demand of Rs 216.732 million. These adjustments /
additions are (i) partial disallowance of royalty expense; (ii) disallowance of WWF paid
to Sindh Revenue Board under the Sindh WWF Act, 2014; (iii) addition on account of
difference in fair market value of certain vehicle disposed off; and (iv) added back
certain expenses on account of non deduction of withholding tax. (v) Charged tax at the
rate of 10% under section 5A of the Ordinance amounting to Rs. 175.409 million on
undistributed reserves.

The FBR through its letter C.No. 2(2)ST&FE/Cond/2014 dated December 16, 2015
rejected the applications. The Company has filed an appeal before the High Court of
Sindh for condonation of time which is pending for hearing. The management of the
Company, based on its discussion with tax and legal consultants, is confident that its
submissions shall be accepted and no demand will be raised against the Company.
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14.1.10

14.1.11

14.1.12

During the year the Company has filed an appeal before ATIR against order dated June
7, 2017 issued by Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals - I) whereby the Company
pleaded that the further tax amounting to Rs 156.020 million cannot be levied since the
supplies were already subject to extra tax. The Company based on the advise of its
legal counsel is anticipating favourable outcome and therefore no provision has been
recognised in these financial statements.

ACIR through its order dated January 15, 2018 has made various additions and
adjustment to the Company's taxable income for the tax year 2017. These adjustments
/ additions are (i) partial disallowance of royalty expense amounting to Rs 105.664
million; (ii) addition of Rs 4.426 million on account of non-deductionof tax u/s 156 from
incentives to dealers; (iii) addition of Rs 0.839 million on account of difference in fair
market value of certain vehicle disposed off; (iv) addition of Rs 15.235 million on
account of payment made in cash above threshold limit; (v) disallowance of expenses
claimed under the head compensated absences amounting to Rs 4.532 million; (vi)
disallowance of finance cost of Rs 2.442 million on account of interest free loan to
employees; and (vii) disallowance of deductible allowance of WWF claimed of Rs
24.012 million having paid to the Sindh Revenue Board. As a result of aforementioned
adjustment / disallowances a demand of Rs 53.45 million has been issued and has
been adjusted against the refunds of the Company. The Company has filed appeal
before the CIR(A) against the abovementioned order, which is pending adjudication.
The Company based on the advise of its legal counsel is anticipating favourable
outcome and therefore no provision has been recognised in these financial statements.

During the year the Company has received an order from DCIR dated March 7, 2018
whereby DCIR disallowed adjustment of input tax on goods and services amounting to
Rs 64.353 million along with default surcharge calculated upon the time of payment and
penalty. The Company has paid Rs 17.928 million (sales tax under protest note 25) to
obtain stay against the aforementioned demand order. The case has been heard and
reserved by the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals.The Company based on the
advise of its legal counsel is anticipating favourable outcome and therefore no provision
has been recognised in these financial statements.
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14.1.13 Guarantees issued by commercial banks on
behalf of the Company 233,138 343,470

14.1.14 Post dated cheques issued to the Collector of
Customs against duty on imported plant &
machinery, raw materials and stores & spares 124,773 91,843

14.2 Commitments

14.2.1 Commitments in respect of:
- letters of credit for capital expenditure 661,483 312,550

- letters of credit for purchase of raw materials
and stores & spares 721,368 880,158

- purchase orders issued to local suppliers for
capital expenditure 139,600 141,600

- sales contracts entered into by the Company 2,508 76,043

- tentative schedules for supply of tyres 2,439,188 2,620,164

- indemnity bond 14.1.1 16,775 16,775

14.2.2

Note

Not later than 1 year 11,181 43,401
Over 1 year and no later than 5 years 3,003 15,024

14,184 58,425

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets 15.1 3,728,209 3,590,980
Capital work-in-progress 15.7 519,100 78,171

4,247,309 3,669,151

The Company has entered into Ijaraharrangements for plant & machinery and vehicles
with a commercial bank. Aggregatecommitments for these ijarah arrangements as at
June 30, are as follows:
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15.1 Operating fixed assets

At July 1, 2016

Cost 555 393,655 123,566 3,320,963 201,077 40,591 305,054 150,622 36,246 155,396 31,715 4,759,440

Accumulated depreciation - 217,707 89,416 1,695,424 51,144 31,717 172,996 72,581 17,435 91,790 26,112 2,466,322

Accumulated impairment - - - 691 - - 363 - - - - 1,054

Net book value 555 175,948 34,150 1,624,848 149,933 8,874 131,695 78,041 18,811 63,606 5,603 2,292,064

Year ended June 30, 2017

Additions / Transfers from CWIP 38,897 402,174 48,497 831,576 68,872 55,315 41,645 18,366 5,563 13,740 36,283 1,560,928

Written-off
- cost - 87 - 4,479 2 27 21 - 4,169 2,224 104 11,113
- accumulated depreciation - (60) - (4,170) (2) (27) (21) - (4,132) (2,223) (93) (10,728)

- 27 - 309 - - - - 37 1 11 385

Disposals
- cost - - - 13,311 - - 5,549 5,261 - - 65 24,186
- accumulated depreciation - - - (13,284) - - (180) (2,612) - - (64) (16,140)

- - - 27 - - 5,369 2,649 - - 1 8,046

Depreciation charge (note 15.4) - 16,629 7,136 138,708 18,538 1,801 21,817 23,831 2,628 16,006 6,487 253,581

Closing net book value 39,452 561,466 75,511 2,317,380 200,267 62,388 146,154 69,927 21,709 61,339 35,387 3,590,980

At June 30, 2017

Cost 39,452 795,742 172,063 4,134,749 269,947 95,879 341,129 163,727 37,640 166,912 67,829 6,285,069

Accumulated depreciation - 234,276 96,552 1,816,678 69,680 33,491 194,612 93,800 15,931 105,573 32,442 2,693,035

Accumulated impairment - - - 691 - - 363 - - - - 1,054

Net book value 39,452 561,466 75,511 2,317,380 200,267 62,388 146,154 69,927 21,709 61,339 35,387 3,590,980

Year ended June 30, 2018

Transfers from CWIP - 33,189 1,499 263,553 38,824 1,030 50,078 53,245 3,148 38,316 2,270 485,152

Disposals
- cost - 500 - 11,013 1,824 - 8,344 12,464 - 1,065 - 35,210
- accumulated depreciation - (450) - (7,599) (1,824) - (8,344) (10,846) - (1,013) - (30,076)

- 50 - 3,414 - - - 1,618 - 52 - 5,134

Depreciation charge (note 15.4) - 37,532 10,262 178,186 24,221 9,990 24,727 24,772 3,424 18,610 11,065 342,789

Closing net book value 39,452 557,073 66,748 2,399,333 214,870 53,428 171,505 96,782 21,433 80,993 26,592 3,728,209

At June 30, 2018

Cost 39,452 828,431 173,562 4,387,289 306,947 96,909 382,863 204,508 40,788 204,163 70,099 6,735,011

Accumulated depreciation - 271,358 106,814 1,987,265 92,077 43,481 210,995 107,726 19,355 123,170 43,507 3,005,748

Accumulated impairment - - - 691 - - 363 - - - - 1,054

Net book value 39,452 557,073 66,748 2,399,333 214,870 53,428 171,505 96,782 21,433 80,993 26,592 3,728,209

Depreciation rate (% per annum) 5 10 5 10 15 10 20 10 15 25

Buildings
on

leasehold
land

Total

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees in '000 -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Laboratory
equipment Moulds Vehicles

Furniture
and

fixtures

Factory
and office
equipment

Computer
equipment

Electrical
installations

Plant and
machinery

Boilers
and

access-
ories

Leasehold
land

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
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June 30, 2018 6,479 3,376 3,103 9,430 6,327

June 30, 2017 11,114 10,729 385 5 (380)

*The rotary tyre building drum was in obselete condition

15.2

15.3 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building)in the name of the Company are
as follows:

Cost of items of operating fixed assets that are fully depreciated amounted to Rs
1,162.625 million (2017: Rs 1,012.575 million).

a) H - 23/2, Landhi Industrial Trading Estate,
Landhi, Karachi

Manufacturing facility 101,000 77,000

b) Plot # B / 30 - B SITE Area Sukkur Warehouse facility 11,700 6,000

Location Usage of immovable
property

Total Area
(In Square Meter)

Covered Area
(In Square Meter)

Note

28.1 322,494 236,062

29 14,023 9,816

30 6,272 7,703

342,789 253,581

15.5

15.6

Borrowing cost amounting Rs Nil (2017: Rs 22.895 million at the rates ranging from 7.27%
to 8.25% per annum) has been capitalised in the cost of plant and machinery.

The details of operating fixed assets disposed-off during the year having net book value
exceeding Rs 500,000 each are as follows:

15.4 Depreciation charge has been
allocated as follows:

Cost of goods manufactured

Administrative expenses

Distribution cost

Vehicles

Suzuki Cultus 1,204 241 963 953 (10) Company policy Mr. Mohammad Akhter

Suzuki Cultus 1,034 379 655 732 77 Company policy Mr. Moiz Sarwar

2,238 620 1,618 1,685 67

Plant and Machinery
Rotary Tyre Building Drum* 1,368 750 618 6 (612) Tender Muhammad Zubair Traders

Air Compressor 2,873 2,006 867 7,739 6,872 Insurance Claim IGI Insurance Limited

4,241 2,756 1,485 7,745 6,260

------------------------- Rupees in '000 --------------------------

 Mode of
disposal Sold to Particulars of

assets  Cost  Accumulated
depreciation

 Net book
value

 Sale
proceeds

 Gain /
(Loss)

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
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Buildings 359,714 56,860 402,174 14,400
Electrical installations 19,818 29,395 48,497 716
Plant and machinery 467,675 403,220 831,576 39,319
Boilers and accessories - 80,042 68,872 11,170
Laboratory equipment - 55,315 55,315 -
Moulds - 52,783 41,645 11,138
Vehicles 6,653 11,713 18,366 -
Furniture and fixtures - 8,532 5,563 2,969
Factory and office equipment 1,534 12,755 13,740 549
Computer equipment 23,516 12,952 36,283 185

878,910 723,567 1,522,031 80,446

Provision for a doubtful advance (2,275)
78,171

As at July
1, 2017

Additions Transfers As at June
30, 2018

Buildings 14,400 92,211 33,189 73,422
Electrical installations 716 1,983 1,499 1,200-
Plant and machinery 39,319 621,478 263,553 397,244
Boilers and accessories 11,170 49,887 38,824 22,233-
Laboratory equipment - 1,030 1,030 -
Moulds 11,138 39,109 50,078 169-
Vehicles - 75,667 53,245 22,422-
Furniture and fixtures 2,969 4,290 3,148 4,111-
Factory and office equipment 549 38,341 38,316 574-
Computer equipment 185 2,085 2,270 -

80,446 926,081 485,152 521,375

Provision for a doubtful advance (2,275)
519,100

--------------- Rupees in '000 -----------------

15.7 Capital work-in-progress
As at July

1, 2016
Additions Transfers As at June

30, 2017
--------------- Rupees in '000 -----------------

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

15.7.1 Capital work in progress includes Rs 111.356 million (2017: Rs 50.760 million)
representing advance payments made to suppliers for procurement of operating fixed assets.

91Annual Report 2018



16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Note

Net book value as at June 30, 16.1 46,584 62,480

16.1 Reconciliation of carrying amount at beginning
and end of the year
Cost
At July 1 69,285 13,190
Additions during the year 8,464 59,660
Write off - (3,565)
At June 30 77,749 69,285
Accumulated amortisation
At July 1 6,805 7,751
Amortisation charge 16.2 24,360 2,619
Write off - (3,565)

At June 30 31,165 6,805

Net book value 46,584 62,480

Amortisation rate(% per annum) 33.33 33.33
16.2 Amortisation charge has been

allocated as follows:
Cost of goods manufactured 28.1 269 1,098
Administrative expenses 29 24,091 1,081
Distribution cost 30 - 440

24,360 2,619

Software licenses &
implementation cost

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATED
COMPANY - Quoted

Ghandhara Industries Limited
- Equity accounted investment

Balance at beginning of the year 10,114 6,019
Share of profit 6,760 5,102
Dividend received (1,511) (1,007)
Balance at end of the year 15,363 10,114
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17.1

17.2

17.3 The summary of financial information / reconciliation of GIL as of March 31, 2018 is as
follows:

The Company considers GIL as its associate and follows equity accounting as it has
significant influence over GIL based on common directorship.

Investment in Ghandhara Industries Limited (GIL) represents 100,700(2017: 100,700) fully
paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each representing 0.473% (2017: 0.473%) of its issued,
subscribed and paid-up share capital as at June 30, 2018. GIL was incorporated on
February 23, 1963 and its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The principal
activity of GIL is the assembly, progressive manufacturing and sale of Isuzu trucks and
buses.

Un-Audited Un-Audited
 As at

March 31,
2018

 As at
March 31,

2017

Summarised statement of financial position
Non current assets 2,442,009 2,054,638
Current assets 8,251,850 6,224,700

10,693,859 8,279,338

Non current liabilities 90,875 128,875
Current liabilities 5,969,984 4,627,242

6,060,859 4,756,117
Net assets 4,633,000 3,523,221

Reconciliation to carrying amount
Opening net assets 3,523,221 2,657,524
Net revaluation during the year - 209,529
Profit for the year 1,430,699 869,566
Other comprehensive loss (1,354) (354)
Dividend paid (319,566) (213,044)
Closing net assets 4,633,000 3,523,221

Company's share  (Percentage) 0.473% 0.473%
Company's share 21,914 16,665
Pre-acquisition profits (6,551) (6,551)
Carrying amount of investment 15,363 10,114

--- Rupees in '000 ---
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17.4

17.5

The above figures are based on unaudited condensed interim financial information of GIL
for the nine months period ended March 31, 2018. The latest financial statements of GIL
as at June 30, 2018 are not presently available. Accordingly, results of operations of first
three quarters of financial year 2018 and last quarter of financial year 2017 have been considered.

The market value of investment as at June 30, 2018 was Rs 71.164 million (2017: Rs
65.466 million).

18. LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
NoteConsidered good - secured

Loans and advances due from:

- executives 18.1 & 18.2 1,841 3,455
- other employees 18.1 10,038 9,208

11,879 12,663
Less: amounts recoverable within one year and
grouped under current assets
- executives 936 1,801
- other employees 4,247 3,537

23 5,183 5,338
6,696 7,325

18.1

18.2 Reconciliation of carrying amount of
loans and advances to executives

Balance as at July 1, 3,455 4,213

Disbursements 1,500 2,240

4,955 6,453

Repayments (3,114) (2,998)
Balance as at June 30, 1,841 3,455

These represent interest free loans and advances provided to executives and other
employees as per the terms of employment. Loans are provided for purchase of motor
vehicles and advances for furnishing of house. Loans are repayable and advances are
amortisable over a period of two to five years by way of monthly instalments. These are
secured against respective motor vehicles and employees' vested retirement benefits.

Summarised profit or loss
Revenue 11,565,648 6,235,963
Profit before tax 1,750,083 902,247
Profit after tax 1,262,398 627,713

Nine months period ended
March 31,

2018
March 31,

2017
--- Rupees in '000 ---
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18.3 The maximum aggregate amount outstanding at the end of any month during the year
ended June 30, 2018 from executives against loans and advances aggregated Rs 2.038
million (2017: Rs 5.549 million).

19. LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Considered good - unsecured and interest-free
Security deposits for:
 - utilities 6,687 6,673
 - ijarah 11,784 21,665
 - others 1,935 511

20,406 28,849
Provision for doubtful deposit (436) -

19,970 28,849

20. STORES AND SPARES

-  in hand 584,402 489,293
-  in transit 12,092 -

596,494 489,293
21. STOCKS

Raw materials

-  in hand 1,929,457 1,492,732

-  in transit 473,151 -

28.3 2,402,608 1,492,732
Work-in-process 28.1 179,905 117,897
Finished goods
-  in hand 21.1 714,448 464,099

-  in transit 27,896 -

28 742,344 464,099
3,324,857 2,074,728

18.4

18.5

18.6

Advances to executives include an amount of Rs 0.111 million (2017: Rs 0.278 million)
provided to the Chief Executive of the Company as furniture advance in accordance with
his terms of employment and in accordance with requirements of Companies Act 2017.
The carrying values of these loans and advances are neither past due nor impaired. The
credit quality of these financial assets can be assessed with reference to no default in
recent history.
Long term loans have been carried at cost as the effect of carrying these balances at
amortised cost would not be material in the overall context of these financial statements.

Note
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21.1

21.2

22. TRADE DEBTS - Unsecured
Note

Consider good
Associated Companies
   Ghandhara Industries Limited 6,920 29,968
   Ghandhara DF (Private) Limited - 1,340
   Gammon Pakistan Limited - 52
Others 1,020,107 847,973

Considered doubtful - others 30,071 27,044

1,057,098 906,377
Provision for doubtful debts 22.1 (30,071) (27,044)

1,027,027 879,333

22.1 Provision for doubtful debts
Balance as at July 1, 27,044 19,716

Provision made during the year 29 11,200 9,073

Amount reversed during the year 31 (8,173) (1,745)

Balance as at June 30, 30,071 27,044

22.2

22.3

Finished goods include items costing Rs 169.890 million (2017: Rs 34.352 million) which
are stated at their net realisable values aggregatingRs 121.607 million (2017: Rs 24.575
million). The aggregate amount charged to profit or loss in respect of stocks written down
to their net realisable value is Rs 48.283 million (2017: Rs 9.777 million).

All operatingfixed assets (excluding land and building) and current assets of the Company
upto a maximum amount of Rs 10,640 million (2017: Rs 10,640 million) are under
hypothecation / pledge charge as security for long term, short term and running finance
facilities (notes 5, 9 and 10).

The maximum aggregate amount of receivable due from related parties at the end of any
month during the year was Rs 103.680 million (2017: Rs 70.918 million).
As at June 30, 2018, trade receivablesof Rs 38.591 million (2017: Rs 44.247 million) were
past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for whom
there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as
follows:

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018
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23. LOANS AND ADVANCES - Considered good
Note

Secured
Current portion of long term loans and advances 18 5,183 5,338

Unsecured
Loans and advances due from:

- executives 450 3,016
- other employees 44,482 40,169

23.1 44,932 43,185
Advances due from:

- executives - 1,044

- other employees 267 202
- suppliers, contractors and others 204,115 260,478

204,382 261,724
254,497 310,247

23.1

23.2 The maximum aggregate amount outstanding at the end of any month during the year
ended June 30, 2018 from executives against short term loans and advances aggregated
Rs 1.316 million (2017: Rs 3.203 million).

These represent interest free festival loans, general loans, special loans, salary advance
and Eid advance provided to executives and other employees in accordance with
Company's policy and have maturities upto twelve months.

2018 2017 2018 2017

6,920 16,218 980,832 612,840
- 15,142 30,849 226,797
- - 16,851 16,671
- - 21,646 18,709

6,920 31,360 1,050,178 875,017
- - (30,071) (27,044)

6,920 31,360 1,020,107 847,973

--- Rupees in '000 ---

Associated Companies Others

--- Rupees in '000 ---
0 to 30 days
31 to 180 days
181 to 360 days
Over one year

Provision for doubtful debts

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018
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24.1

25. OTHER RECEIVABLES - Unsecured
Note

Export benefit receivable (duty drawback) 658 658

Provision for doubtful export benefit receivable (658) (658)
- -

Sales tax under protest 14.1.1 34,703 16,775

Custom duty rebates recoverable 89,705 89,705
Provision for custom duty rebates recoverable (89,705) (89,705)

- -
Sales tax - net 84,891 134,795
Margin and deposits against bank guarantees 11,114 13,027
Income tax paid under protest
  (note 14.1.5, 14.1.6 & 14.1.8) 121,361 91,210

Others 29,139 10,127
Provision for doubtful receivables (1,537) (1,537)

27,602 8,590
279,671 264,397

26. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

With banks in:
- current accounts 26.1 53,065 41,835
- deposit account 26.2 8,171 5,019

61,236 46,854
Cash and cheques in-hand 29,884 52,718

91,120 99,572
26.1 Include Rs 0.589 million (2017: Rs 0.779 million) placed with islamic saving account.

These represent interest free call deposit receipts issued from a commercial bank in favour
of respective Commandants of various Spares Depots of Pakistan Army against  supply of
tyres.

24. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Note

Considered good and unsecured
Trade deposits - interest free 16,609 21,465
Call deposit receipts 24.1 58,458 19,586
Prepayments 13,545 11,273
Current account balances with statutory authorities 11.7 13,993 13,993

102,605 66,317

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018
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26.2

27. SALES - Net

Own manufactured goods

Local 13,838,456 11,452,094
Export 32,158 -

Trading goods 268,366 255,241

14,138,980 11,707,335
Less:
- sales tax 2,105,300 1,734,247
- discounts 145,874 195,665
- Commission and allowances 102,349 132,056

2,353,523 2,061,968
11,785,457 9,645,367

Deposit account is held with Askari Bank Limited - an associated company and it carries
mark-up at the rate of 4.50% (2017: 3.75%) per annum.

Note

28. COST OF SALES
Opening stock of finished goods 464,099 203,526

Cost of goods manufactured 28.1 9,560,628 7,464,761
Finished goods purchased 234,373 182,999
Royalty technical service fee 28.2 183,023 202,118

9,978,024 7,849,878
Closing stock of finished goods 21 (742,344) (464,099)

9,699,779 7,589,305

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018
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28.2 The royalty technical service fee pertains to royalty paid to Continental Tire The
Americas, LLC with registered address 1830 MacMillan Park Drive Fort Mill, South
Carolina 29707, United States of America.

28.1 Cost of goods manufactured
Opening work-in-process 117,897 162,244
Raw materials consumed 28.3 5,783,099 4,343,879
Stores and spares consumed 467,907 340,708
Salaries, wages and benefits 28.4 1,834,398 1,465,051
Travelling, conveyance and entertainment 8,861 9,197
Vehicles running expenses 25,714 22,907
Legal and professional charges 7,947 7,966
Power and fuel 841,352 714,754
Rent, rates and taxes 24,251 17,934
Ijarah rentals 29,043 57,791
Insurance 20,508 18,658
Repairs and maintenance 76,520 39,755
Tyre replacement allowance 13.1 62,402 49,356
Depreciation 15.4 322,494 236,062
Amortisation 16.2 269 1,098
Printing and stationery 2,802 1,853
Postage and telephone 2,873 2,780
Transportation 101,491 80,411
Other manufacturing expenses 10,705 10,254

9,740,533 7,582,658
Closing work-in-process 21 (179,905) (117,897)

9,560,628 7,464,761

28.3 Raw materials consumed Note
Opening stock 1,492,732 1,204,824
Purchases during the year 6,692,975 4,631,787

8,185,707 5,836,611
Closing stock 21 (2,402,608) (1,492,732)

5,783,099 4,343,879

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018
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6,268
4,142
7,898
1,960

2,689

9,816
1,081

3,330
9,073
9,321
9,400
2,871

249,535

and

5.456
and

28.4

29. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Note

Salaries and benefits 29.1 213,930 179,425
Travelling and conveyance 5,076
Vehicles running expenses 5,518
Legal and professional charges 7,439
Auditors’ remuneration 29.2 3,050
Rent, rates and taxes 102 102
Insurance 867
Repairs and maintenance 831 357
Depreciation 15.4 14,023
Amortisation 16.2 24,091
Printing and stationery 957 903
Postage and telephone 862 899
Ijarah rentals 2,940
Provision for doubtful debts 22.1 11,200
Computer expenses 12,307
Directors’ fee 29.3 12,800
Other expenses 6,397

322,390

29.1

29.2 Auditors’ remuneration Note
A. F.

Ferguson &
Co.

ShineWing
Hameed

Chaudhri &
Co.

Statutory audit fee 1,500 1,500
Audit of provident fund - 100
Others 29.2.1 1,300 110
Out-of-pocket expenses 250 250

1,550 460
3,050 1,960

Salaries, wages and benefits includeRs 37.681million (2017: Rs 30.107million) and Rs
14.222million (2017: Rs 13.187million) in respect of staff retirement benefits gratuity
provident fund respectively.

Salaries and benefits include Rs 8.073 million (2017: Rs 5.189 million) and Rs
million (2017: Rs 4.540 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits gratuity
provident fund respectively.

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
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29.2.1

29.3 Directors' fee

30. DISTRIBUTION COST Note
Salaries and benefits 30.1 170,718 147,675
Travelling, conveyance and entertainment 27,570 22,754
Vehicle running expenses 6,014 5,362
Legal and professional charges 161 35
Advertisement and sales promotion 96,829 95,988
Rent, rates and taxes 22,122 21,055
Ijarah rentals 5,279 5,992
Insurance 955 786
Repairs and maintenance 1,121 3,631
Depreciation 15.4 6,272 7,703
Amortisation 16.2 - 440
Printing and stationery 669 690
Postage and telephone 2,432 2,919
Freight and insurance 151,868 119,652
Gas and electricity 1,923 1,675
Others 3,918 15,659

497,851 452,016
30.1

31. OTHER INCOME
Note

Income from financial assets
Profit on bank deposits - conventional bank 274 4,410
Income from other than financial assets
Sale of scrap net of sales tax 53,859 47,767
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets 10,966 7,774
Reversal of provision for doubtful debts 22.1 8,173 1,745
Others 31.1 869 1,979

74,141 63,675
31.1

Salaries and benefits include Rs 6.912 million (2017: Rs 5.864 million) and Rs 2.804
million (2017: Rs 2.574 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits gratuity and
provident fund respectively.

These represent interest free income from various sources.

Aggregate amount charged in these financial statements amounting to Rs 11.3 million
(2017: Rs 8.2 million) for meeting fee is to eleven (2017: eleven) non executive directors.

The amount for the year ended June 30, 2018 represented fee for engagement performed
in connection with stock count exercise for certain months.

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
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32. OTHER EXPENSES Note
Workers’ profit participation fund 11.5 50,414 63,599
Workers’ welfare fund
- current year 18,832 24,168
- prior year (219) (219)

18,613 23,949
Exchange loss - net 61,363 4,224

Donations 32.1 19,121 23,230
149,511 115,002

32.1

33. FINANCE COST
Note

Mark-up on:

- long term finances 123,533 73,427
- short term finances 20,735 4,504
- running finances 103,762 40,040
Interest on workers’ profit participation fund 11.5 3,280 60
Bank charges and guarantee commission 5,472 6,033

256,782 124,064

Donations exceeding Rs 500,000 made to a single party during the year are as follows:

Khattak, Director of the Company are trustees of Waqf-e-Kuli Khan.

-

32.1.1 Lt. Gen. (Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak,Chairman of the Company and Mr. Raza Kuli Khan

Donee Address

Waqf-e-Kuli Khan (note 32.1.1)

17,889 22,071
The Citizens Foundation

1,000
18,889 22,071

2nd Floor, Gammon House, 400-2,
Chour Chowk, Peshawar Road,
Rawalpindi.
Plot No. 20, Sector 14, Near
Brookes Chowrangi, Korangi
Industrial Area, Karachi.

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
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34.3 In the management's opinion, sufficient tax provision has been made in the Company's
financial statements. Comparison of tax provision as per the financial statements viz-a-
viz tax assessment for last three years is as follows:

34. TAXATION

Current
- for the year 258,438 179,738
- for prior years 7,787 9,586

266,225 189,324
Deferred tax (41,731) 113,501

224,494 302,825

34.1

Profit before taxation 940,045 1,184,222

Tax at the applicable rate of 30% (2017: 31%) 282,014 367,109
Tax effect of:
 - impact of tax credits (45,793) (73,704)
 - impact of change in tax rate (24,466) (1,286)
 - income chargeable at lower rate / exempt income 2,337 1,456
 - income assessed under Final Tax Regime (9,072) (6,823)
 - expenses that are not allowed in determining

taxable income (16,043) (19,709)

(93,037) (100,066)
Super tax 27,730 26,196

(65,307) (73,870)
Effect of prior years' tax 7,787 9,586

224,494 302,825

34.2

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on August 17, 2018 has distributed sufficient
cash dividend for the year ended June 30, 2018 (refer note 46) which complies with the
above stated requirement. Accordingly, no provision for tax on undistributed profits has
been recognised in these financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 imposes tax at the rate of 7.5% on every
public company other than a scheduled bank or modaraba, that derives profits for tax
year but does not distribute 40% of accounting profit either through cash dividend or
issuance of bonus shares within six months of the end of said tax year.

The tax on the Company's profit before tax differs from the theoreticalamount that would
arise using the Company's applicable tax rate as follows:

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
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35. EARNINGS PER SHARE

35.1 Basic earnings per share
Profit after taxation 715,551 881,397

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 59,771,250 59,771,250

Earnings per share 11.97 14.75

35.2 Diluted earnings per share

36. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Note

Profit before taxation 940,045 1,184,222

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items
Depreciation 342,789 253,581
Amortisation 24,360 2,619
Provision for staff retirement gratuity 52,666 41,161
Charge of employees compensated absences 10,591 9,121
Provision for doubtful debts charge - net 3,027 7,328
Profit on bank deposits (274) (4,410)
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets (10,966) (7,774)
Provision for doubtful deposit 436 -
Finance cost 256,782 124,064
Share of profit of an associated company (6,760) (5,102)
Working capital changes 36.1 (878,904) (693,679)

733,792 911,131

-- Number of shares --

-------- Rupees --------

There are no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding as at June 30, 2018 and 2017.

The difference between tax assessed and tax provision are explained in note 14.1.7,
14.1.8 and 14.1.12.

2017 2016 2015

Tax assessed as per most recent tax assessment 240,975 661,282 381,372
Provision in accounts for income tax 187,525 444,550 381,372

--------------- Rupees in '000---------------

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
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36.1 Working capital changes
(increase) / decrease in current assets:
 - Stores and spares (107,201) 7,259
 - Stocks (1,250,129) (504,134)
 - Trade debts (150,721) 138,009
 - Loans and advances 55,750 (208,773)
 - Deposits and prepayments (36,288) (187)
 - Other receivables 14,877 (104,286)

(1,473,712) (672,112)
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities:
 - Trade and other payables 587,208 (28,067)
 - Provisions 7,600 6,500

594,808 (21,567)

(878,904) (693,679)

37. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of following:

Note
Running finances under mark-up arrangements 10 (1,742,566) (1,082,880)

Cash and bank balances 26 91,120 99,572

(1,651,446) (983,308)

38. REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES
The aggregate amount charged in these financial statements for the year for
remuneration, including certain benefits to the Chief Executive and other executives of the
Company is as follows:

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018
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39. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION 2018 2017

Capacity:     Tyre sets 3,558,862 3,407,100

Production:  Tyre sets 2,632,877 2,307,124

--- Number of units ---

38.1 The Chief Executive and some of the executives are providedwith free use of Company
maintained cars.

2018 2017 2018 2017*

Managerial remuneration and
allowances 38,462 32,420 143,867 119,811

Meeting fee 1,500 1,200 - -
Bonus 10,006 9,492 34,697 24,649
Company’s contribution to provident

fund and gratuity scheme 4,346 3,503 13,072 8,651
Medical 300 259 13,889 9,574
Leave passage 3,335 - 4,918 5,131
Others 1,334 1,271 16,678 14,540

59,283 48,145 227,121 182,356

Number of persons 1 1 29 25

Chief Executive Executives

------------------- Rupees in '000 --------------------

* Comparatives have been amended to reflect changes in the definition of executive as per
the Companies Act, 2017.

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

40. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES
Related parties comprise of associated companies, directors of the Company,
companies in which directors are interested, staff retirement benefit funds, key
management personnel and close members of the families of the directors and key
management personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries out
transactions with various related parties. Amounts due from and to related parties are
shown under long term finances (note 5), staff benefits (note 6), running finances under
mark-up arrangements (note 10), trade and other payables (note 11), accrued mark-up
(note 12), investment in an associated company (note 17), long term loans and advances
(note 18.4), trade debts (note 22), loans and advances (note 23), deposits and
prepayments (note 24) and cash and bank balances (note 26).

39.1 Actual production was sufficient to meet the demand.

Note

39.1

107Annual Report 2018



2018 2017

Ghandhara Industries Associated Common Sales 334,240 273,090
Limited company director N/A Services rendered 32 450

Truck purchased 1,975 -
Dividend received 1,511 1,007

Ghandhara Nissan Associated Common
Limited company director N/A Sales 92 44,115

Ghandhara DF (Private) Associated Common
Limited company director N/A Sales 32,434 13,420

Bibojee Services (Private) Associated Common Dividend paid 249,131 -
Limited company director Rent 1,602 1,296

Sui Northern Gas Associated Common Sales 11,894 41,032
Pipelines Limited company director N/A

Gammon Pakistan Associated Common Sales - 52
Limited company director N/A Construction services

obtained - 30,262
Pak Kuwait Takaful Associated Common Insurance premium - 872
Company Limited company director N/A

Wackenhut Pakistan Associated Common Service charges 496 2,929
(Private) Limited company director N/A

Askari Bank Limited Associated Common Mark-up on long term
company director N/A and running finances 50,004 44,112

Profit earned 274 249

Pakistan Kuwait Associated Common
Investment Company company director Dividend paid 268,969 -
(Private) Limited

Name Nature of
relationship

Nature of
transactions

--- Rupees in ‘000 ---

Basis of
relationship

Aggregate % of
shareholding in
the Company

27.79

30.00

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Significant transactions with related parties are as follows:
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2018 2017

Janana De Malucho Associated Common Re-imbursment of
Textile Mills Limited company director N/A expenses - 90

Siemens Pakistan Associated Common Advance for supply of
Engineering Company company director N/A computers and related
Limited equipment - 1,881

Software licenses
purchased 23,392 17,803
Services rendered - 6,564
Purchase of stores
and spares 4,041 24,909

Waqf-e-Kuli Khan Associated Common
undertaking director N/A Donation 17,889 22,071

Key management Key management Employees Sale of fixed assets - 1,000
personnel personnel Disbursement / repayment

of long term loan

Key management Key management Director N/A Dividend paid 11,022 -
personnel personnel

Staff provident fund Employees Employee benefit N/A Contributions made 22,482 20,301
fund scheme

Staff gratuity schemes Employees Employee benefit N/A
fund scheme Refer note 6.1

Basis of
relationship

Name Nature of
relationship

Nature of
transactions

--- Rupees in ‘000 ---

Refer note 18

Aggregate % of
shareholding in
the Company

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Size of the Fund - Total Assets

Cost of investments made

Percentage of investments made

Fair value of investments

--- ---

427,051

2018 2017
Un-Audited Audited

444,909

418,527 432,127

98.00% 97.13%

408,989 422,483

Rupees in ‘000

financial of the for

41. PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURES
41.1 The following information is based on un-audited statements Fund

the year ended June 30, 2018:
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41.2 Break-up of the investments is as follows:
2018 2017 2018 2017

Special accounts in scheduled banks 69.08 24.97 282,507 105,484
Debt securities - 8.01 - 33,841
Government securities 4.42 24.36 18,080 102,931
Listed securities 26.50 30.45 108,402 128,650
Mutual funds - units - 12.21 - 51,577

41.3

----- Percentage ----- --- Rupees in ‘000 ---

The investments out of the provident fund have been made in accordance with the
provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this
purpose.

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
42.1 Financial risk factors

- credit risk;

- liquidity risk; and

- market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk).

(a) Credit risk
Credit risk represents the risk of accounting loss being caused if counterparty fails to
perform as contracted or discharge an obligation.Credit risk mainly arises from loans &
advances, deposits, trade debts, other receivables and balances with banks. Out of the
total financial assets aggregating Rs 1,308.711 million (2017: Rs 1,126.270 million) as
detailed in note 42.3 below, those that are subject to credit risk aggregate to Rs
1,307.176 million (2017: Rs 1,125.350 million).

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The Board is also responsible
for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.The Company's
overall risk management program focuses on providing maximum return to shareholders.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the
risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risk
and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly
to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018
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Long term loans and advances 6,696 7,325

Long term deposits 19,970 28,849

Trade debts 1,027,027 879,333

Loans and advances 50,115 48,523

Deposits 75,067 41,051

Other receivables 38,716 21,617

Bank balances 89,585 98,652

1,307,176 1,125,350

Original equipment manufacturers 384,474 580,478

Government institutions 21,794 22,345

Replacement market 650,830 303,554

1,057,098 906,377

Provision for doubtful debts (30,071) (27,044)

1,027,027 879,333

All the trade debts at the reporting date represent domestic parties.

Financial assets credit risk primarily exists in cash and cash equivalents and credit
exposure to Original Equipment Manufacturers, Replacement Market Dealers and
Government Institutions, including outstanding receivables and committed transactions.
The Company does not have significant exposure to any individual counterparty. To
reduce exposure to credit risk with respect to trade debts the Company has developed a
formal approval process whereby credit limits are applied to its customers. The
management also continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the customers and
makes provision against those balances considered doubtful of recovery.To mitigate the
risk, the Company has a system of assigning credit limits to its customers based on an
evaluationof customers profile and payment history. Outstanding customer receivables
are regularly monitored. Where considered necessary, advance payments are obtained
from certain parties.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts by type of counter party as at
reporting date is as follows:

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
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(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the
obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as
far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due,
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Company's reputation.

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to contractual maturity
dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

The Company monitors the credit quality of its bank balances with reference to historical
performance of such assets and available external credit ratings. The bank balances
aggregating Rs 61.236 million placed with banks have a short term credit rating of at least
A1+. Accordingly, management does not expect any counter party to fail in meeting their
obligation.

June 30, 2018

Long term finances 1,718,583 1,960,249 585,492 1,086,059 288,698

Long term deposits
from dealers 9,351 9,351 - - 9,351

Short term finances 946,187 958,079 958,079 - -

Running finances 1,742,566 1,742,566 1,742,566 - -

Trade and other payables 1,928,381 1,928,381 1,928,381 - -

Unclaimed dividend 14,034 14,034 14,034 - -

Unpaid dividend 8,708 8,708 8,708 - -

Accrued mark-up 58,848 58,848 58,848 - -

6,426,658 6,680,216 5,296,108 1,086,059 298,049

Carrying
amount

Contractual
cash flows

Maturity upto
one year

Maturity
between
one and

two years

Maturity
above

three years

------------------------- Rupees in '000 --------------------------

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018
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The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk on import of raw materials, plant and
machinery, stores and spares and export of goods denominatedin U.S. Dollar and Euro.
The Company's exposure to foreign exchange risk at the reporting date is as follows:

Foreign exchange risk represents the risk that the fair values or future cash flows of
financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

Foreign exchange risk

on the basis of mark-up rates effective as at June 30, 2018.
The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilitieshave been determined

(c) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and equity prices will affect the Company's income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. The objectiveof market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the
return.

June 30, 2017

Long term finances 1,457,300 1,639,814 525,969 495,980 617,865

Long term deposits

------------------------- Rupees in '000 --------------------------

Carrying
amount

Contractual
cash flows

Maturity upto
one year

Maturity
between
one and

two years

Maturity
above

three years

from dealers 9,471 9,471 - - 9,471

Short term finances 157,736 159,245 159,245 - -

Running finances 1,082,880 1,082,880 1,082,880 - -

Trade and other payables 1,348,074 1,348,074 1,348,074 - -

Unclaimed dividend 8,147 8,147 8,147 - -

Unpaid dividend 8,933 8,933 8,933 - -

Accrued mark-up 57,460 57,460 57,460 - -

4,130,001 4,314,024 3,190,708 495,980 627,336

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018
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The following significant exchange rates have been applied:
2018 2017

U.S. Dollar to Rupee 121.60 105.00
Euro to Rupee 141.57 120.10

Effect on profit before taxation for the year:
U.S. Dollar to Rupee 66,807 20,160
Euro to Rupee 1,033 204

67,840 20,364

(d) Interest rate risk

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets 8,171 5,019

Variable rate instruments

Financial liabilities 4,407,336 2,697,916

Majority of the interest rate risk of the Company arises from short & long term borrowings
from banks and mark-up bearing deposits held with a bank. Borrowings at variable
interest rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk and deposits with banks
at fixed interest rates give rise to fair value interest rate risk. At June 30, 2018, the interest
rate profile of the Company's significant financial instruments is as follows:

Reporting date rate

At June 30, 2018, if Rupee had strengthened / weakened by 10% against U.S. Dollar and
Euro with all other variables held constant, profit before taxation for the year would have
been higher / lower by the amount shown below mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gain / loss on translation of denominated financial currency balances.

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair values or future cash flows of financial
instruments will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates.

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Trade and other payables 678,359 5,494 73 203,700 1,920 17

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017

Rupees U.S.$ Euro Rupees U.S.$ Euro
------------- in '000 ------------- ------------- in '000 ------------
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Price risk

42.2 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities [Level 1].

-

-

Currently there are no financial assets or financial liabilities which are measured at their
fair value in the statement of financial position.

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) [Level 3].

Price risk represents the risk that the fair values or future cash flows of financial
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising
from foreign exchange risk or interest rate risk), whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors effecting all
similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to other
price risk as it does not hold any price sensitive instruments.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is going
concern and there is no intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its
operation or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The estimated fair value of all financial assets and liabilities is considered not significantly
different from book values as the items are either short - term in nature or periodicallyre-
priced.

International Financial Reporting Standard 13, ‘Financial Instruments : Disclosure’
requires the Company to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair
value hierarchy has the following levels:

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) [Level 2].

At June 30, 2018, if the interest rate on the Company's borrowings had been higher /
lower by 100 basis point with all other variables held constant, profit before tax for the
year would have been lower / higher by Rs 44.073 million (2017: Rs 26.979 million)
mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense.

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018
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maintenance of debt to equity ratio under the financing agreements.

42.3 Financial instruments by category
Financial assets as per the statement of
financial position
Loans and receivables
Long term loans and advances 6,696 7,325
Long term deposits 19,970 28,849
Trade debts 1,027,027 879,333
Loans and advances 50,115 48,523
Deposits 75,067 41,051
Other receivables 38,716 21,617
Cash and bank balances 91,120 99,572

1,308,711 1,126,270
Financial liabilities as per the statement
 of financial position
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Long term finances 1,718,583 1,457,300
Long term deposits from dealers 9,351 9,471
Short term finances 946,187 157,736
Running finances under mark-up arrangements 1,742,566 1,082,880

Trade and other payables 1,792,908 1,108,479
Unclaimed dividend 14,034 8,147
Unpaid dividend 8,708 8,933
Accrued mark-up 58,848 57,460

6,291,185 3,890,406

43. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend
paid to shareholders and / or issue new shares.

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to
continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders,
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the
sustained development of its business.

There was no change to the Company’s approach to capital management during the year
and the Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements except for the

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018
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principal classes of customers accounted for the following percentages of sales:

44. ENTITY- WIDE INFORMATION

44.1 Information about products and customers

2018 2017
% %

Original equipment manufacturers 62.19 64.65
Replacement market 35.12 31.80
Government institutions 2.47 3.55
Exports 0.22 -

100.00 100.00

44.2 Information about geographical areas

44.3 Information about major customers

45. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

2018 2017

Average number of factory employees during the year 981 933
Average number of other employees during the year 161 152
Number of factory employees as at June 30 985 968
Number of other employees as at June 30 158 159

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segment.

The Company markets and sells tyre and tubes for automobiles and motorcycles. The
principal classes of customers of the Company's product are Original Equipment
Manufacturers, Replacement Market, Government Institutions and Exports. These

Sales to four original equipment manufacturers aggregating Rs 4,598.881 million (2017:
Rs 4,650.488 million) account for 39.02% (2017: 48.21%) of net sales.

All non-current assets of the Company as at June 30, 2018 are located in Pakistan.

The total and averagenumber of employees during the year and as at June 30, 2018 and
2017 respectively are as follows:

No of employees

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018
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46.

47.

47.1

47.2 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees, unless otherwise stated.

47.3

These financial statements were authorised for issue on August 17, 2018 by the Board
of Directors of the Company.

Corresponding figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to reflect more
appropriate presentation of events and transactions for the purpose of comparison in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

GENERAL

Notes to and Forming part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER YEAR END DATE

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on August 17, 2018 has proposed
final cash and bonus dividend of Rs 6 and Rs 7 per share, amounting to Rs 358.628 and Rs
418.399 million respectively for the year ended June 30, 2018. The dividend is subject to the
approval of members at the annual general meeting. The effect of such dividend shall be
accounted for in the financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2019.

Siraj A. Lawai
Chief Financial Officer

Hussain Kuli Khan
Chief Executive

Adnan Ahmed
Director
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Pattern of Shareholding
As at June 30, 2018

#  of Shareholders Shareholding Slab Total Shares Held
821 1 to 100  37,290
904 101 to 500  282,954
446 501 to 1000  391,380
746 1001 to 5000  1,742,090
162 5001 to 10000  1,237,563

57 10001 to 15000  722,177
36 15001 to 20000  652,009
15 20001 to 25000  357,212
24 25001 to 30000  668,699
7 30001 to 35000  230,448

13 35001 to 40000  492,894
5 40001 to 45000  211,862
5 45001 to 50000  245,425
1 50001 to 55000  51,000
1 55001 to 60000  60,000
3 60001 to 65000  188,800
2 65001 to 70000  133,010
2 70001 to 75000  141,600
1 75001 to 80000  80,000
3 80001 to 85000  248,861
1 85001 to 90000  89,500
1 90001 to 95000  93,300
2 95001 to 100000  192,000
1 105001 to 110000  109,600
3 115001 to 120000  354,496
2 120001 to 125000  246,442
2 125001 to 130000  256,100
1 135001 to 140000  135,600
2 145001 to 150000  298,764
2 150001 to 155000  303,700
1 165001 to 170000  169,300
1 170001 to 175000  172,200
2 195001 to 200000  399,100
1 205001 to 210000  207,500
1 220001 to 225000  222,400
2 230001 to 235000  461,482
1 235001 to 240000  238,493
2 240001 to 245000  481,518
1 340001 to 345000  344,301
2 360001 to 365000  727,800
1 500001 to 505000  500,800
1 740001 to 745000  743,000
1 820001 to 825000  822,500
1 935001 to 940000  936,100
1 965001 to 970000  965,900
1 1250001 to 1255000  1,252,600
1 2205001 to 2210000  2,206,600
1 2855001 to 2860000  2,856,676
1 3470001 to 3475000  3,474,800
1 14400001 to 14405000  14,402,112
1 17930001 to 17935000  17,931,292

3,296  59,771,250
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DIRECTORS AND THEIR SPOUSE(S) AND MINOR CHILDREN
LT. GEN (R) ALI KULI KHAN KHATTAK 1  238,493  0.40
MR. RAZA KULI KHAN KHATTAK 1  240,418  0.40
MR. AHMAD KULI KHAN KHATAK 1  14,900  0.02
MR. AHMAD KULI KHAN KHATTAK 1  121,442  0.20
DR. SHAHEEN KULI KHAN KHATTAK 1  119,248  0.20
MR. MANSUR KHAN 1  50  0.00
MR. ATIF ANWAR 1  50  0.00
MR. HUSSAIN KULI KHAN 1  100  0.00

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, UNDERTAKINGS AND RELATED PARTIES
BIBOJEE SERVICES (PVT) LIMITED 2  16,608,712  27.79
PAKISTAN KUWAIT INVESTMENT CO. (PVT) LTD. 1  17,931,292  30.00

EXECUTIVES  -    -    -

PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES AND CORPORATIONS 4  416,126  0.70

BANKS, DEVELOPMENT FINANCE INSTITUTIONS, NON-BANKING
FINANCE COMPANIES, INSURANCE COMPANIES, TAKAFUL,
MODARABAS AND PENSION FUNDS 20  5,591,651  9.36

MUTUAL FUNDS
CDC - TRUSTEE DAWOOD ISLAMIC FUND 1  10,000  0.02
CDC - TRUSTEE NIT-EQUITY MARKET OPPORTUNITY FUND 1  150,200  0.25
CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST CAPITAL MUTUAL FUND 1  15,200  0.03
CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST 1  2,856,676  4.78
CDC - TRUSTEE MCB PAKISTAN STOCK MARKET FUND 1  222,400  0.37
CDC - TRUSTEE ALHAMRA ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 1  169,300  0.28
CDC - TRUSTEE AKD OPPORTUNITY FUND 1  23,700  0.04
MCBFSL - TRUSTEE ABL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 1  20,800  0.03
CDC - TRUSTEE ABL ISLAMIC PENSION FUND - EQUITY SUB FUND 1  2,100  0.00
CDC - TRUSTEE ABL PENSION FUND - EQUITY SUB FUND 1  2,500  0.00
MCBFSL TRUSTEE ABL ISLAMIC DEDICATED STOCK FUND 1  35,400  0.06
CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST DAWOOD MUTUAL FUND 1  1,500  0.00
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ISLAMIC FUND 1  109,600  0.18
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN TAHAFFUZ PENSION FUND - EQUITY SUB FUND 1  62,500  0.10
CDC - TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC RET. SAV. FUND-EQUITY SUB FUND 1  89,500  0.15
CDC - TRUSTEE UBL RETIREMENT SAVINGS FUND - EQUITY SUB FUND 1  33,700  0.06
CDC - TRUSTEE NIT ISLAMIC EQUITY FUND 1  135,600  0.23
CDC - TRUSTEE - MEEZAN DEDICATED EQUITY FUND 1  25,000  0.04
MCBFSL - TRUSTEE AKD ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 1  20,000  0.03

GENERAL PUBLIC
   A. LOCAL 3,164  11,523,522  19.28
   B. FOREIGN 2  11,100  0.02
FOREIGN COMPANIES 7  774,941  1.30
OTHERS 69  2,193,529  3.67
                                                                                   TOTALS 3,296  59,771,250  100.00

Categories of Shareholders
As at June 30, 2018

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

PAKISTAN KUWAIT INVESTMENT CO. (PVT) LTD.  17,931,292  30.00
BIBOJEE SERVICES (PVT) LIMITED  16,608,712  27.79
EFU LIFE ASSURANCE LTD  3,474,800  5.81

Share holders holding 5% or more Share held Percentage
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                                                                        Please quote:
 No. of Shares held------------
The Company Secretary
The General Tyre and Rubber Company                                    Folio No. ----------------------
of Pakistan Limited                                                                   CDC Part. ID -----------------
H-23/2, Landhi Industrial Trading Estate                                 A/C/Sub A/C No. -------------
Landhi, Karachi

I/We--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
of ------------------------ Member(s) of The General Tyre and Rubber Company of Pakistan Limited do hereby
appoint ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
-
of ----------------------- or failing him -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
-
of ----------------------- as proxy in my/ our behalf at the Fifty-fifth (55th) Annual General Meeting of the Company
to be held at the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan Auditorium, Clifton, Karachi on Thursday,
18 October 2018, at 03:30 p.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

Signature of Shareholder ------------------------------

Name of Shareholder ----------------------------------

Witnesses:

Signature--------------------------------------- Signature ----------------------------------------

Name ------------------------------------------- Name ---------------------------------------------

NIC/ Passport No. ----------------------------- NIC/Passport No.------------------------------

Form of Proxy

Signature on
Revenue Stamp

of Rs.5/=




